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Aquino, De C6tdova, Alfaro & Co., LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & BUSINESS ADVISORS 

Richard N . Alfaro, CPA (1951-1998) 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Legislature of 
Municipality of San Juan, 
Capital City of Puerto Rico 
San Juan, Puerto Rico 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

f orge Aquino Barreto, CPA, C\~ 
ferry De Cordot·a, CPA, JD 
l•ligrrnl Angel Ortiz, CPA 
Eduardo Gonzalez Green, CPA, CFE 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of San Juan, Capital City of Puerto 
Rico (the "Municipality"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011 , which collectively comprise the Municipality's 
basic financial statements on pages 21 to 75. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Municipality's 
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Municipality as of June 30, 2011 , and the respective changes in financial position, 
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 9, 2012, on our 
consideration of the Municipality's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered 
in assessing the results of our audit. 
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion 
and analysis and budgetary comparison - general fund information on pages 7 through 20 and on pages 77 and 78 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Government Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during 
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the Municipality's basic financial statements as a whole. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for the purpose of 
additional analysis as required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Government, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. The 
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are 
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information have been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements arid certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or 
to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. ~ / J F 
March9,2012 ~°t b. ~. ~- ·· /" 4, ' 

Stamp number 2635065 
has been affixed to the 
original report 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

The Management of the Municipality of San Juan (the "Municipality") provides the Municipality's comprehensive 
annual financial report and the discussion and analysis of the Municipality's financial performance during the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2011. 

Since the Managemenrs Discussion and Analysis is designed to focus on the current year activities, resulting 
changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the Municipality's financial statements. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

o The Municipality's net assets increased approximately $23.5 million. 
o In the fund financial statements, total revenues increased approximately $36.1 million (or 5.2%) while 

total expenditures increased approximately $11.4 million (or 1.5%). 
o The General Fund (the primary operating fund) reflected, on a current financial resource basis, a 

decrease of deficit by $2.3 million. 
o On a budgetary basis, the General Fund's actual expenditures were approximately $9.3 million less 

than actual revenues. 
o The Municipality issued bonds and notes amounting to approximately $107.2 million to finance an early 

retirement termination benefit, capital improvements and the construction or acquisition of other capital 
assets. 

o The total net assets of the proprietary fund amounted to ($201 ,598) - excess liabilities over assets. 
o The total net assets of the proprietary fund decreased by $201,598 during the period from inception 

December 15, 2010 to June 30, 2011 . 

USING THIS COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

This discussion and analysis is required supplementary information to the basic financial statements and is intended 
to serve as introduction to the basic financial statements of the Municipality. The basic financial statements are 
comprised of three components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) 
notes to the financial statements. This report also contains required supplementary information (budgetary schedule) 
and additional supplementary information (combining financial statements) in addition to the basic financial 
statements themselves. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide users of the financial statements with a broad 
overview of the Municipality's finances in a manner similar to private-sector companies. 

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Municipality's assets and liabilities, and their 
difference reported as net assets. Fluctuations in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
position of the Municipality is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Municipality's net assets changed during the most 
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change 
occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the 
Statement of Activities that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. The Statement of Activities is focused 
on both the gross and net cost of various activities, which are funded by the government's general tax and other 
revenue sources. This is intended to summarize and simplify the users' analysis of cost of various governmental 
services. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Municipality that are mostly supported 
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are financed with debt 
that is secured by a pledge of the net revenues from rent service charge of the International Center. The 
governmental activities include general government, public safety, public works, culture and recreation, health and 
welfare, urban development, economic development and education. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the Municipality's most significant funds, not the 
Municipality as a whole. The Municipality has two categories of funds. 

o Governmental fund financial statements - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike 
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near term 
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of expendable resources available at 
the end of the fiscal year. Such information is useful in evaluating the Municipality's near term financial 
requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government wide financial statements, 
it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented 
for governmental activities in the government wide financial statements. By doing so, users of the basic 
financial statements may better understand the long-term impact of the Municipality's near term financial 
decisions. The Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficit) provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison 
between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

o Proprietary fund financial statements - Proprietary funds are used to account for activities that operate more 
like those of business enterprises. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the 
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. Like the government-wide financial statements, 
proprietary fund financial statements use the accrual basis of accounting. There are no reconciling items 
between the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund financial statements. The only 
proprietary fund operated by the Municipality is the International Center. The basic proprietary fund financial 
statements can be found immediately following the governmental fund financial statements. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements. 

Required Supplementary Information 

The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information. This section 
includes a budgetary comparison schedule, which includes reconciliation between the statutory fund balance for 
budgetary purposes and the fund balance for the General Fund as presented in the governmental fund financial 
statements. 

10 



MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

Other Supplementary Information 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

The combining financial statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are presented 
following the required supplementary infonnation. The total columns of these combining financial statements carry 
forward to the applicable fund financial statement. 

Infrastructure Assets 

Historically, a government's largest group of assets (infrastructure - roads, bridges, traffic signals, underground pipes 
[unless associated with a utility], etc.) had not been reported nor depreciated in governmental financial statements. 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement No. 34 requires that these assets be valued and 
reported within the governmental column of the government-wide financial statements. Additionally, the government 
must elect to either (a) depreciate these assets over their estimated useful life or (b) develop a system of asset 
management designed to maintain the service delivery potential to near perpetuity. If the government develops the 
asset management system (the modified approach) which periodically (at least every third year), by category, 
measures and demonstrates its maintenance of locally established levels of service standards, the government may 
record its cost of maintenance in lieu of depreciation. The infonnation about the condition and maintenance of the 
government infrastructure assets should assist financial statements users in evaluating a local government and its 
perfonnance over time. 

The Municipality elected to depreciate infrastructure assets instead of using the modified approach. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE 

Net Assets 

Condensed net asset infonnation is presented below: 

ASSETS 
Capital assets $ 654,605 $ 651 ,401 $ 54,616 $ $ 709,221 $ 651 ,401 
Other asset; 346,346 347,700 1,528 347,874 347,700 

Totlil •Hits 1,000,951 999,101 56,144 1,057,095 999,101 

LIABILITIES 

Currrent liabilities 237,762 245,687 1,274 239,036 245,687 
Noncurrent liabilities 752,988 766,753 55,072 808,060 766,753 

Totlil llmllltl• 990,750 1,012,440 56,346 1,047,096 1,012,440 

NET ASSETS 

lnwsted in capital assets, net 

of rela'9d debt 273,583 252,341 273,583 252,341 
Re5*icted for. 

Debt sen.ice 38,273 25,024 38,273 25,024 
Oller purposes 14,590 18,523 14,590 18,523 

Unresticted (316,243) (309,227) (202) (316,445) (309,227) 
Totlil netu•ets $ 10,203 $ (13,339) $ (202) $ $ 10,001 $ (13,339) 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

The Municipality's total assets amounted to $1,001 .0 million at June 30, 2011 , an increase of $58.0 million when 
compared with the prior year. The increase in capital assets of $57.8 million is mainly due to the acquisition of 
International Center by approximately $55 million. 

The Municipality's total liabilities amounted to $990.8 million at June 30, 2011, an increase of $34.7 million when 
compared with the prior year. The increase is mainly due to the issuance of general obligation bonds, revenue bond, 
notes payable and additions to compensated absences, pension-related debt and other long-term liabilities of 
approximately $138.0 million, net of the principal payments and deductions of long-term liabilities of approximately 
$96.7 million. 

The largest portion of the Municipality's net assets is the negative unrestricted net assets. The net assets consist of 
the excess of assets over related liabilities that are neither externally neither legally restricted, neither invested in 
capital assets. These negative net assets are the consequence of previous budgets which did not provide funding for 
incurred long-term obligations such as compensated absences, landfill closure and post closure costs, claims and 
judgments and others. Historically, such obligations have been budgeted on a pay as you go basis without providing 
funding for their future liquidation. Consequently, the Municipality cannot draw from its existing assets to provide 
services to its citizens and depends on its taxing ability to continue its operations. 

An additional portion of the Municipality's net assets represents the investment in capital assets such as land, 
buildings, equipment, among others, less any outstanding related debt used to acquire those assets. The 
Municipality uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not available 
for future spending. Although, the Municipality's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it 
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from the Debt Service Fund, since 
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. The amounts restricted for debt service 
represent another portion of the net assets, and these are resources subject to external restrictions for the purposes 
explained above. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

Changes in Net Assets 

The condensed changes in net assets information is presented below: 

Program revenues: 
Chaiges for services $ 68,300 $ 60,417 $ 
Operating grants and cartributioos 136,488 121,008 
C3pilal grants and contributions 6,330 4,610 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 237,819 238,690 
Municipal license tax 153,974 157,381 
Sales Tax 56,405 54,487 
Construction excise and other local taxes 21 ,985 16,637 
Grants and contributions not 
restricted to specific irograms 38,031 30,380 

Interest income 2,565 3,884 
Other 6,646 4,964 

T olal revenues 728,543 692,458 

Expenses: 
General gowmment 143,282 118,236 
Public safety 63,910 64,185 
Public works 78,562 76,920 
Cutue and recreation 24,001 26,319 
Heal!l and welfare 264,980 259,579 
Urban deYelopment 52,232 57,456 
Economic development 26,033 25,424 
Education 20,202 21,071 
Interest on long-term debt 31,800 30,306 
lntematklnal Center 

Total expenses 705,002 679,496 

Chalge in net assets 23,541 12,962 

Net assets at begi ming of yeaI (13,338) (26,300) 

Net assets at end of year $ 10,203 $ (13,338) $ 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

1,528 $ $ 69,828 $ 60,417 
136,488 121,008 

6,330 4,610 

237,819 238,690 
153,974 157,381 
56,405 54,487 
21,985 16,637 

38,031 30,380 
2,565 3,884 
6,646 4,964 

1,528 730,071 692,458 

143,282 118,236 
63,910 64,185 
78,562 76,920 
24,001 26,319 

264,980 259,579 
52,232 57,456 
26,033 25,424 
20,202 21,071 
31,800 30,306 

1,730 1,730 

1,730 706,732 679,496 

(202) 23,339 12,962 

(13,338) (26,300) 

(202) $ $ 10,001 $ (13,338) 

The Municipality's total revenues increased by approximately $37.6 million. Approximately, 64.4% (67.5% in 2010) of 
the Municipality's total revenue came from taxes, while approximately 24.8% (22.5% in 2010) resulted from grants 
and contributions, including federal aid. Charges for services provided approximately 9.6% (8.7% in 2010) of the 
total revenues. 

Revenues from taxes increased by approximately $3.0 million. Revenues from construction and other local taxes 
increased by $5.3 million due to the increase in construction projects mainly financed by the public sector. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Charges for services increased by approximately 15.6% when compared with the prior fiscal year mainly due to an 
increase in health care service revenues. 

The following charts summarize the Municipality's revenues by sources for the governmental activities for the fiscal 
years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010. 

Municipal License 

Taxes 

21.1% 

Revenues by Source-Governmental Activities 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 

Charges for 

Services..........._ 

8 .7% "" 
Operating and 

Capital Grants and 

Contributions 

7.9% 

Other 

------- 5.8% 

Property Taxes 

34.5% 

Municipal License 

Taxes 

22.7% 

The Municipality's total expenses amounted to $706.7 million and $679.5 million for the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2011 and 2010, respectively. Increase in total expenses was mainly due to increases in payroll and professional 
services. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

The following chart summarizes the Municipality's program revenues compared to program expenses for the 
governmental activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY'S INDIVIDUAL FUNDS 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

As noted earlier, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the Municipality's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Municipality's financing requirements. 
In addition, fund balance for governmental funds provide classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on 
the extent to which the Municipality is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those 
funds can be spent. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $106.5 million, a net increase of $7.0 million in comparison with the prior year. The combined fund 
balances include nonspendable fund balances amounting to $26.5 million at June 30, 2011. This is the portion of 
fund balances that cannot be spent readily with cash or is legally or contractually required not to be spent ($8.2 
million) in the General Fund or they are not expected to be converted in cash soon enough to affect the current 
period ($18.3 million). There are restricted fund balances amounting to $60.2 million. This is the portion of fund 
balance that reflects resources that are subject to externally enforceable legal restrictions 1) to pay for specific 
program purposes ($15.4 million); 2) to pay for capital projects ($6.5 million; and 3) to pay for debt services ($38.3 
million). There are committed fund balances amounting to $64.4 million that can only be used pursuant to constraint 
formally imposed by the Municipal Legislature by ordinances and resolutions 1) to pay for specific programs purpose 
($0.2 million) and; 2) to pay for capital projects ($64.2 million). Accordingly, since there is an excess of 
nonspendable, restricted and committed fund balances over total fund balances, a negative unassigned fund balance 
of $44 .6 million was reported in the governmental funds at June 30, 2011 . 

Governmental funds include the general fund, which is the main operating fund of the Municipality. As of June 30, 
2011 and 2010, the General Fund has an accumulated deficit of $16, 183,607 and $16,845,203 (as restated), 
respectively. Key factors in the decrease of General Fund's deficit are as follows: 

•!• Increase of $6.8 million in total revenues. 
•!• Increase of $9.7 million in total expenditures. 
•!• Other financing sources of $25.4 million 
•!• A fund reclassification of $1 .6 million 

Increase of $6.8 million in total revenues was mainly due to the increase of $7.6 million, $6.7 million and $5.3 million 
in intergovernmental revenues, charges for services and construction excise tax, net of decrease of approximately 
$12.6 million in property taxes. 

The increase of intergovernmental revenue was related to the increase in contributions in lieu of taxes from PREPA 
during the current year. The increase in charges for services is directly related with the approval of new medical and 
facilities charge rates and fees. The increase in construction excise tax is mainly due to the investment in the public 
sector for buildings and infrastructure in San Juan. The decrease in property tax revenues was mainly due to the 
difference of prior year and current year incentive plan collections. 

The increase of $9.7 million in expenditures was mainly due to increases in general government expenditures such 
as insurance, workmen compensation, pension cost and utilities. 

Other financing sources amounting to $25.4 million result from the proceeds of long-term debt issued. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

During the current year the Municipality undertook a comprehensive evaluation of its fund structure according to the 
modifications made by GASS Statement No. 54 to the definitions of special revenue funds and the types of activities 
the Municipality may choose to report in those funds. As a result of such evaluation, on July 1, 2010 the Municipality 
recorded a prior-period adjustment of $1 .6 million to reclassify various funds previously recorded within the general 
fund that were reclassified as non-major special revenue funds. 

Governmental funds also include the Debt Service Fund. The fund balance of the Debt Service Fund as of June 30, 
2011 and 2010 amounted to $38.2 million and $25.0 million, respectively. The increase of $13.2 million in the fund 
balance of the Debt Service Fund is the result of revenues from the special ad valorem tax restricted for debt service 
and accounted for in the Debt Service Fund of $84.5 million net of payment of principal and interest of $71.3 million. 

Proprietary Fund 

The proprietary fund financial statements present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the 
International Center fund (lnCF), which accounts for the leasing operations and maintenance of a real estate 
property. The most significant transactions related to this fund during the current fiscal year were the issuance of $55 
million in revenue bonds used to finance the acquisition of the real property currently owned by the fund . 

At June 30, 2011 , the total assets of the proprietary fund amounted to $56.1 million of which $54.6 million represents 
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, while $1 .5 million represents cash in commercial banks. The total 
liabilities at year-end amounted to $56.3 million, consisting principally of revenue bonds payable of $55.0 million, and 
interest payable of $1 .3 million. 

From the period of inception, December 15, 2010 to June 30, 2011, the proprietary fund collected rental service 
charges amounting to $1.5 million, while the operating expenses of the fund amounted to $0.5 million. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET ARY HIGHLIGHTS 

The Municipality approved an original budget for the General Fund of $495.3 million. During the year, there was one 
amendment to include changes in revenues that were identified during the course of the fiscal year based on current 
developments that affected the Municipality's finances. In addition, there were transfers of appropriations between 
the original and final budget due to changes in departments' budgeted expenditures. 

On the budgetary basis, actual revenues of the General Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2111 were $520.3 
million while actual expenditures were $511.1 million. Accordingly, as a result of the tighter controls imposed by the 
Municipality's management, there was an excess of actual revenues over expenditures of approximately $9.3 million. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

The Municipality's investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 amounted to approximately $709.2 
million and $651.4 million, respectively, net of accumulated depreciation. This investment in capital assets includes 
land, buildings, sites, improvements, equipment, intangibles, infrastructure, works of art, vehicles and construction in 
progress. Infrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable and of value only to the Municipality, such as 
roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting systems, and similar items. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 
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Land $ 100,704 $ 97,555 $ 18,624 $ $ 119,328 $ 97,555 

Works of art 2,224 2,224 2,224 2,224 
Buildings and building improvements 261,327 262,939 35,992 297,319 262,939 
Site improvements 74,368 79,112 74,368 79,112 
Infrastructure 174,604 171 ,441 174,604 171,441 
Equipment and vehicles 12,915 9,361 12,915 9,361 
Construction in progress 28,463 28,769 28,463 28,769 

Total $ 654,605 $ 651.401 $ 54,616 $ $ 709,221 $ 651,401 

The increase in the Municipality's capital assets was 8.9% over last year. Actual expenditures to purchase or 
construct capital assets from the Municipality's governmental activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 
2010 were $39.8 million and $48.5 million, respectively. The acquisition of capital assets from the Municipality's 
business-types activities amounted $55.0 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Depreciation charges from 
the Municipality's governmental and business-type activities amounted to $37.1 million and $34.4 million for the fiscal 
years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

The Municipality finances a significant portion of its construction activities through bond issuances. The proceeds 
from bond issuances designated for construction activities are committed in its entirety for such purposes and cannot 
be used for any other purpose. As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Municipality has approximately $70.0 million and 
$74.6 million, respectively, of unexpended proceeds from bond issuances that are restricted or committed to future 
construction activities. 

Additional details regarding the Municipality's capttal assets can be found in Note 8 to the financial statements. 

Debt Administration 

The Puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the issuance of general obligation municipal bonds and 
notes for the payment of which the good faith, credit and taxing power of each municipality may be pledged. 

Based on the current total net assessed valuation of real and personal property in San Juan provided by the 
Governmental Development Bank for Puerto Rico ("GOB") of approximately $28.7 billion, the legal debt limlt margin 
of the Municipality as of June 30, 2011, was $2.9 billion. The Municipality's available legal debt margin as of June 
30, 2011, was calculated by GOB to equal $2.5 billion after subtracting from the legal margin the amount of $394.1 
million in outstanding general obligation debt as of June 30, 2011 , and adding to the legal margin the amount in its 
Redemption Fund of $35.5 million as of June 30, 2011. 

The applicable law also requires that in order for a municipality to be able to issue additional general obligation bonds 
and notes such municipality must have sufficient "payment capacity." Act No. 64 of July 3, 1996, as amended, 
provides that a municipality has sufficient "payment capacity" to incur additional general obligation debt if the deposits 
in such municipality's Debt Service Fund and the annual amounts collected with respect to such municipality's 
Special Additional Tax (as defined below), as projected by GOB, will be sufficient to service to maturity the 
Municipality's outstanding general obligation debt and the additional proposed general obligation debt ("payment 
capacity"). The rating assigned is BBB/Stable by Standard & Poor's Investor Services. 

The Municipality is required under applicable law to levy the Special Additional Tax in such amounts as shall be 
required for the payment of its general obligation municipal bonds and notes. In addition, principal of and interest on 
all general obligation municipal bonds and notes and on all municipal notes issued in anticipation of the issuance of 
general obligation bonds issued by the Municipality constitute a first lien on the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Accordingly, the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues would be available to make debt service payments on general 
obligation municipal bonds and notes to the extent that the Special Additional Tax levied by the Municipality, together 
with moneys on deposit in the Municipality's Debt Service Fund, are not sufficient to cover such debt service. It has 
never been necessary to apply basic taxes to pay debt service on general obligation debt of the Municipality. 

During fiscal year 2011, the Municipality issued bonds and notes amounting to $52.1 million to provide for 
construction projects and equipment needs of the Municipality, and finance the current portion of an early retirement 
termination benefit. In addition, the Municipality issued a revenue bond of $55.1 million to acquire a real estate for 
it's business-type activities. General obligation debt includes bonds, notes and mortgage as shown in the table 
below: 

Geiiiiil Oulitiiidlng Di6t (in thOiuen ) 
'.As of June .. 

Govern ........ 
Tae.19 

.JlD11 2010 
Bonds payable $ 394,138 $ 41 0,636 $ $ $ 394, 138 $ 41 0,636 
Bond anticipation notes 1,873 1,873 
Notes payable 228,856 217,525 228,856 217,525 
Revenue bonds 55,072 55,072 
Mortgage ea;r:able 3,836 4,177 3,836 4,177 

Total $ 628,703 $ 632,338 $ 55,072 $ $ 683,775 $ 632,338 

At June 30, 2011, the Municipality had $394.1 million of general obligation bonds outstanding. The following chart 
indicates the principal amortization of the Municipality's general obligation bonds in five-year increments. 

G8riiiil Biiildl 
Mldpal Amortlalon 

In Five Y• lnnnenls Followitg Fiscal Y• 2111 
(in thousands) 

Fiscal l'rlncipll 
Years Amoltlmloll 

2012-2016 $ 182, 199 
2017-2021 92, 198 
2022-2026 77,425 
2027-2031 33,686 
2032-2036 8,630 

Total $ 394, 138 

As can be seen in the following chart, approximately 89% of the Municipality's outstanding general obligation bonds 
will be retired within the next fifthteen (15) years. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 
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The Municipality has various outstanding notes payable amounting to $228.9 million at June 30, 2011. Those notes 
payable were mainly issued for the acquisition, construction or improvement of capital assets and for working capital 
purposes. These outstanding notes payable will be paid with unrestricted property tax revenues and financial 
resources arising from sales taxes recorded in the debt service fund . There were no notes payable issued during the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. 

Additional details regarding the Municipality's long-term debt can be found in Note 12 to the financial statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RA TES 

The Municipality relies primarily on property and municipal taxes as well as federal grants to carry out the 
governmental activities. Historically, property and municipal taxes have been very predictable with increases of 
approximately five percent. Federal grant revenues may vary if new grants are available but the revenue also is very 
predictable. On March 9, 2009, the Legislature of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico approved Law No. 7, known as 
the Fiscal Emergency Act, for the purpose of stabilizing the financial condition of the central government by requiring 
the implementation of a cost reduction program, including payroll cost. The broad effect of the implementation of 
these measures cannot be presently determined at June 30, 2011 . These factors were considered when preparing 
the Municipality's budget for the 2011 -2012 fiscal years. 

FINANCIAL CONTACT 

The Municipality's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and 
creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality's finances and to demonstrate the Municipality's accounting. If 
you have questions about the report or need additional financial information, contact the Municipality's Finance 
Director on the 5th floor of the Municipal Tower, 160 Chardon Avenue, San Juan, Puerto Rico 00919 or visit our 
website at www.sanjuan.pr. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO As of June 30, 2011 

Business Total 
Governmental Type Primary 

Activities Activities Government 

ASSETS 
Cash in commercial banks $ 47,546,355 $ $ 47,546,355 
Cash with fiscal agent 198, 131,483 198,131,483 
Accoun5 receivable: 

Property tax 18,747,993 18,747,993 
Municipal license tax 6,390,235 6,390,235 
Sales tax 7,012,754 7,012,754 
Construction excise tax 5,000,000 5,000,000 
lnergovernment:il 24,437,009 24,437,009 

'• Other 7,751 ,379 7,751,379 
Loans receivable, net 10,886,938 10,886,938 
Inventories 8,190,628 8,190,628 
Deferred charges, net 2,108,522 2,108,522 
Real estate held for sale 175,201 175,201 
Other assets 7,452,603 7,452,603 
Restriced cash in commercial banks 2,515,357 1,528,301 4,043,658 
Capital assets not being depreciaed 131,391,379 18,624,329 150,015,708 
Capital assets being depreciated, net 523,213,997 35,992,016 559,206,013 

Total assets 1,000,951,833 56,144,646 1,057,096,479 

LIABILITIES 
Accoun5 payable and accrued liabilities 71 ,024,297 71 ,024,297 
Intergovernmental payables 4,126,635 4,126,635 
Deferred revenues: 

Municipal license tax 96,491,418 96,491,418 
Federal grant revenues 5, 118,730 5, 118,730 

Bonds and interest payable 61 ,000,618 1,274,304 62,274,922 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 89,173,218 520,000 89,693,218 
Due in more than one year 663,814,885 54,551,940 718,366,825 

Total liabilities 990,749,801 56,346,244 1,047,096,045 

NET ASSETS 
lnvesed in capital assels, net of related debt 273,582,683 273,582,683 
Restriced for: 

Debt service 38,273,407 38,273,407 
Other purposes 14,588,525 14,588,525 

Unrestricted (316,242,583} (201,598} (316,444, 181} 
Total net asse5 $ 10,202,032 $ (201,598) $ 10,000,434 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 

23 



MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

Flllldlo..,.._ &,... 
Governrrenl31 acMles: 

General govemrrent 143,281,513 s 
Pubfc sail!( 63,909,738 

Pubfcworks 78,562,145 

Cullre and rineakln 24,001 ,051 

Heall and weltlre 264,979,765 

Urban deveDJxl-ent 52,231,792 

ECCllOOic deveq,rrent 26,033,334 

Educakln 20,202,797 

Iner est oo ~-am deli 31,800,672 

T olll governrrenl31 act.<ies 705,002,807 

Business-fype acP/iles: 

lnemaklnal Cener 1,730,193 

Total 706,733,000 s 

General revenues: 

Properfy exes 

Munqial k:ense ex 
Sa~ex 

Cllllgll fir 
Senlca 

9,720,804 

789,462 

10,4~ 

2,031,000 

45,153,219 

2,081,471 

3,484,666 

5,028,898 

68,299,926 

1,528,595 

69,828,521 

Coostutiln alll oiler kx:al axes 

,.... ........ 
O(llalilll 
Gfnlld 

COlllllllltialt 

1,476,711 

1,351,461 

956,595 

57,975,842 

64,960,746 

1,683,567 

8,082,911 

136,487,833 

136,487,833 

Grant ard cootbuloos na resti::i!d I:> splrilc prCXJram; 

lnerest ilcorre 

Ofler 

Teel general revenues 

Net change il net assets 

Net asset atbegilnilg dyear 
Net asset at end d year 

Clplll 
GlllllllM 

ColliiMlns 

s 

6,329,768 

6,329,768 

6,329,768 

s 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

-~ ...... Clllltlilllt .... 

..... Ill ....... .,,. ...... Al:lilllill Toal 

(132,083,998) (132,083,998) 

(61,768,815) (61,768,815) 

(71,265,376) (71,265,376) 

(21,970,051) (21,970,051) 

(161 ,850,704) (161,850,704) 

14,810,425 14,810,425 

(20,865, 101) (20,865, 101) 

(7,090,988) (7,090,988) 

(31,800,672) (31,800,Sn) 

(493,885,280) (493,885,280) 

(201 ,598) (201,598) 

(493,885,280) (201,598) (494,086,878) 

237,818,710 237,818,710 

153,974,460 153,974,460 

56,404,967 56,404,967 

21 ,985,853 21 ,985,853 

38,030,597 38,030,597 

2,565,220 2.565,220 

6,645,772 6,645,772 

517,425,579 517,425,579 

23,540,299 (201,598) 23,338,701 

(13,338,267) (13,338,267) 

10,202,032 (201,598) $ 10,000,434 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, BALANCE SHEET • GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO As of June 30, 2011 

Dlbt Other 
General Service Governmental 

Fund Funds Funds Toti! 

ASSETS 
Cash in commercial banks $ 3,604,438 $ $ 43,941 ,917 $ 47,546,355 
Cash with fiscal agent 5,035,216 102,890,372 90,205,895 198, 131,483 
.Accounts receivable: 

Property tax 17, 118,988 1,629,005 18,747,993 
Municipal license tax 6,390,235 6,390,235 
Sales tax 7,012.754 7,012,754 
Construction excise tax 5,000,000 5,000,000 
lntergo\€mmental 3,682,830 20,754,179 24,437,009 

• Other 7,101,545 649,834 7,751,379 
Loans receivable, net 10,886,938 10,886,938 
Due from other funds 60.784,872 791 ,778 61 ,576,650 
ln\€ntories 8,166,234 24,394 8,190,628 
Real estate held for sale 175,201 175,201 
Other 7,452,603 7,452,603 
Restricted cash in commercial banks 2,515,357 2,515,357 

Total assets $ 131,349.715 $ 104,519,377 $ 169,945,493 $ 405,814,585 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 
Liabilities: 
.Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 47,544,884 $ $ 23,479,413 $ 71,024,297 
lntergo\€mmental payables 3,497,020 629,615 4, 126,635 
Due to other funds 5,245,352 56,331 ,298 61 ,576,650 
Matured bonds and interest payable 61 ,000,618 61,000,618 
Deferred re\€nues: .. Municipal license tax 96,491,418 96,491,418 

Federal grant re\€nues 5, 118,730 5,118,730 
Total liabilities 147,533,322 66,245,970 85,559,056 299,338,348 

Fund balances (deficit): 
Nonspendable 15,618,837 10,911,332 26,530,169 
Restricted 3,297,457 38,273,407 18,615, 124 60,185,988 
Committed 245,340 64,147,256 64,392,596 
Unassigned (35,345,241) (9,287,275) (44,632,516) 

Total fund balances (deficit) (16,183,607) 38,273,407 84,386,437 106,476,237 
Total liabilities and fund balances (deficit) $ 131 ,349,715 $ 104,519,377 $ 169,945,493 $ 405,814,585 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND 

BALANCES (DEFICIT) - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ~ 

CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

~ 

Debt Other 
General Service Governmental 

Fund Funds Funds Total 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 161,024 ,007 $ 76,794,703 $ $ 237,818,710 
Municipal license tax 153,974,460 153,97 4,460 
Sales tax 48,713,261 7,691,706 56,404,967 
Construction excise tax 21 ,985,853 21,985,853 
License and permits 2,044,147 2,044,147 
Charges for Ser.1ces 57,218,872 2,135,798 59,354,670 
Fine and forfeitures 6,901,109 6,901 ,109 
Interest 1,867,437 32,891 664,892 2,565,220 
lntergo~mmental 

Federal 142,588,992 142,588,992 
Local 38,030,597 228,609 38,259,206 

Other 3,178,931 3,466,841 6,645,772 
Total re~nues 494,938,674 84,519,300 149,085,132 728,543, 106 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General Go~mment 137,665,108 13,135,017 150,800,125 
Public Safety 59.943,134 1,362,658 61,305,792 
Public works 66,529,470 1,270,368 67,799,838 
Culture and recreation 15,002,740 1,210,190 16,212,930 
Health and welfare 204,984,595 54,079,559 259,064,154 
Urban de~lopment 4,713,292 47,113,095 51,826,387 
Economic de~lopment 9,659,584 10,863,515 20,523,099 
Education 10,098,640 8,897,868 18,996,508 

Capital outiar.; 1,549,393 38,288,419 39,837,812 
Debt Ser.1ce 

Principal 4,165,436 47,923,000 3,670,736 55,759,172 
Interest 5,352,308 23,347,265 3,101,099 31 ,800,672 

Total expenditures 519,663,700 71,270,265 182,992,524 773,926,489 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (24,725,026) 13,249,035 (33,907,392) (45,383,383) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 

Proceeds from bonds issued 25,386,622 26,738,060 52,124,682 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 661 ,596 13,249,035 (7,169,332) 6,741 ,299 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF 

~I YEAR, AS RESTATED (16,845,203) 25,024,372 91 ,555,769 99,734,938 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR (16,183,607) $ 38,273,407 $ 84,386,437 $ 106,476,237 

~"<) 
~ 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

ASSETS 
Current assels 

Restricted cash in commercial banks 

Noncurrent assels 
Capital assels not being depreciated 
Capital assels being depreciated, net 

Total noncurrent assels 
Total assels 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 

Revenue bonds interest payable 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total noncurrent liabilities 
Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestriced 

Total net assels 

$ 

$ 

ST A TEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
PROPRIETARY FUND 

As of June 30, 2011 

International 
Center 

1,528,301 

18,624,329 
35,992,016 
54,616,345 
56, 144,646 

1,274,304 

520,000 
54,551,940 
55,071 ,940 
56,346,244 

(201,598} 
(2011598l 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

OPERATING RENT REVENUES 
Rent charges fix services 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Depreciation expense 

OPERATING INCOME 

NONOPERA TING EXPENSES 
Interests on long-term debt 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

PROPRIEATARY FUND 
From Inception December 15, 2010 to June 30, 2011 

lnt8riiatk>nal 
Center 

$ 1,528,595 

455,595 

1,073,000 

(1,274,598} 

NET CHANGE IN NET ASSETS AND NET ASSETS, END OF PERIOD $ (201 1598l 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from lease tenanl'5 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds of revenue bonds 
Acquisition of capital assel'5 
Charges and interest paid 
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUND 

From Inception December 15, 2010 to June 30, 2011 

$ 1,528,595 

55,071,940 
(55,071,940) 

(294} 
(294} 

NET INCREASE IN RESTRICTED CASH IN COMMERCIAL BANKS AND 
RESRICTED CASH IN COMMERCIAL BANKS, END OF PERIOD $ 1,528,301 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERA TING INCOME 
TO CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income $ 1,073,000 
Adjustment to reconcile operating income to net 
cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 455,595 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERA TING ACTIVITIES $ 1,528,595 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET · GOVERNMENTAL FUND, 
AND THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUND TO THE 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
As of June 30, 2011 

Total fund balances/net assets as reported in the balance sheet -
governmental funds, and as reported in the statement of net 
assets - propietary fund 

Amounts reported for governmental and business-type activities in 
the statement of net assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and, therebre, are not reported in the funds. 

Land 
Building and site improvemenls, net of depreciation 
Infrastructure, net of depreciation 
Equipment and vehicles, net of depreciation 
Works of art 
Construction in progress 

Total 

Deimed charges, net of accumulated amortization, are not 
available to pay br current period expenditures and, therefore, 
are deferred in the funds. 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and 
payable in the current period and, therebre, are not reported in 
the funds. 

Bonds payable 
Bond anticipation note 
Mortgage payable 
Notes payable 
Compensated absences 
Pension-related debt 
Claims and judgmenls 
Landfill obligation 
Other liabilities 

Total 

Total net assets of governmental and business-type activities 

GoWmmantal 
Activities 

$ 106,476,237 $ 

100,703,974 
335,695,572 
174,603,660 
12,914,765 
2,224,365 

28,463,040 
654,605,376 

2,108,522 

(394, 138,000) 
(1 ,873,060) 
(3,836, 169) 

(228,856,202) 
(52,551,245) 
(38,071 ,989) 
(6, 100,000) 

(17,100,000) 
(10,461,438) 

(752,988, 103) 

$ 10,202,032 $ 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Total 

(201 ,598) $ 106,274,639 

100,703,974 
335,695,572 
174,603,660 
12,914,765 
2,224,365 

28,463,040 
654,605,376 

2,108,522 

(394, 138,000) 
(1 ,873,060) 
(3,836, 169) 

(228,856,202) 
(52,551 ,245) 
(38,071,989) 
(6, 100,000) 

(17, 100,000) 
(10,461,438) 

(752,988, 103) 

(201 ,598) $ 10,000,434 
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

(DEFICIT)/NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS AND 
PROPRIETARY FUND TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Net change in fund balances (deficit)hiet assets as reported in the statement of revenues, 

expenditures/expenses and changes in fund balances (deficitYnet assets -governmental funds 

and propietaryfund 

Amounts reported for governmental and business-type acti.,;ties in the statement of activities are 

different because: 

Goi,emmental funds report caprtal ouUa~ as expenditures. Howei,er, in the statement of acti..nies 

the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation 

expense. 
Expendrtures for caprtal assets 
Current year depreciation 

The issuance of long-term debt pro.,;des current financial resources to governmental funds. Also, 

governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items 

when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortiled in the statement of 

acti\1ties. 

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 

Bonds 
Bond anticipation notes 

Notes payable 

Bond issue costs 

The repa)1Tlents or deductions of the following long-term obligations are recorded as 

expenditures in the governmental funds, however, are recorded as reductions of their respective 

liabilities in the statement of net assets: 

Bonds 

Mortgage payable 

Notes payable 

Some expenses reported in the statement of acfi..;ties do not require the use of current financial 

resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 

Miortization of deferred charges 

Change in pension-related debt 

Landfill obligation 
Compensated absences 

Other liabilities 
Other miscellaneous transactions 

Net change in net asse1s of governmental acti\ities and business-twe acti\1ties 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

$ 

6,741,299 $ (201,598) 
---'-----'-

39,837,812 
(36,633,287) 

3,204,525 

(24,865,000) 
(1,873,060) 

(25,386,622) 

116,978 

(52,007,704) 

41 ,363,000 

340,736 

14,055,436 
55,759,172 

(304,138) 

9,019,190 

900,000 
(3,649,286) 

3,860,505 
16,736 

9,843,007 

23,540,299 $ (201,598) __ ...;.._~ 

$ 

$ 

Tobi 

6,539,701 

39,837,812 
(36,633,287) 

3,204,525 

(24,865,000) 
(1,873,060) 

(25,386,622) 

116,978 

(52,007,704) 

41,363,000 

340,736 

14,055,436 

55,759,172 

(304,138) 

9,019,190 
900,000 

(3,649,286) 

3,860,505 
16,736 

9,843,007 

23,338,701 



MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

1. Organization and Reporting Entity 

A. Organization 

Notes to Financial Statements 
As of June 30, 2011 

The Municipality of San Juan (the "Municipality") was founded in 1521 and is the largest municipality and the 
Capital City of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The Municipality's governmental system consists of 
executive and legislature bodies. The Municipality is governed by a Mayor and a seventeen-member Municipal 
Legislature who are elected for a four-year term. 

The Municipality provides public safety, public works, culture and recreation, health and welfare, urban 
development, education, economic development, and other miscellaneous services to its citizens. 

The accompanying basic financial statements present the financial position of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality at 
June 30, 2011 , in conformity with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America 
(USGAAP), as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASS). In addition, the 
accompanying basic financial statements present the changes in the financial position (results of operations) of 
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 , in conformity with USGAAP. Furthermore, the basic 
financial statements referred to above present the cash flows of the proprietary fund for the period from 
inception December 15, 2010 to June 30, 2011 in conformity with USGAAP. 

B. Reporting Entity 

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units and other organizations that are 
included to ensure that financial statements are not misleading. The primary government consists of all funds, 
departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from the Municipality and for which the 
Municipality is financially accountable. 

Pursuant to the provisions of GASS Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASS 
Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units - an Amendment of 
GASB Statement No. 14, the Municipality's management has considered all potential component units (whether 
governmental, not-for-profit, or profit-oriented) for which it may be financially accountable, and other legally 
separate organizations for which the Municipality is not financially accountable but the nature and significance 
of their relationship with the Municipality may be such that exclusion of their basic financial statements from 
those of the Municipality would cause the accompanying basic financial statements to be misleading or 
incomplete. Accordingly, a legally separate organization would be reported as a component unit of the 
Municipality if all of the following criteria are met: 

1) The Mayor appoints a voting majority of an organization's governing body and, either (1 ) the 
Municipality has the ability to impose its will on that organization or (2) the organization has the 
potential to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the 
Municipality. 

2) The economic resources, for which the Municipality is entitled, either received or held by the 
separate organization, are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the Municipality or its 
constituents. 

The Municipality's management has concluded that, based on the aforementioned criteria, there are no legally 
separate entities or organizations that should be reported as component units of the Municipality for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2011. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Notes to Financial Statements 
As of June 30, 2011 

The basic financial statements of the Municipality have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles as applied to local governmental units in the United States of America (USGAAP). 

The Municipality's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement of 
net assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed level of 
financial information. 

On March 2009, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 55, The Hierarchy of 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments (GASB No. 55), and GASB 
Statement No. 56, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in the A/CPA 
Statements on Auditing Standards (GASB No. 56). 

GASB No. 55 incorporated the hierarchy of USGAAP for state and local governments into the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) authoritative literature. The requirements in this Statement codify all 
USGAAP for state and local governments so that they derive from a single source. 

GASB No. 56 incorporated into the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) authoritative literature 
certain accounting and financial reporting guidance presented in the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants' Statements on Auditing Standards. This Statement addressed three issues not included in the 
authoritative literature that establishes accounting principles-related party transactions, going concern 
considerations, and subsequent events. 

A. Government-wide (GWFS) and Fund financial statements (FFS) 

Financial information of the Municipality is presented in this report as follows: 

1) Management's discussion and analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides an 
analytical overview of the Municipality's financial activities. 

2) The GWFS (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) reports information 
on all activities of the Municipality. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges 
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and 
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general 
revenues. 

The effects of all inter-fund activities (assets, liabilities, revenues, expenditures and other 
financing sources/uses among governmental funds) have been eliminated from the govemment­
wide financial statements. 

3) The governmental fund financial statements (GFFS) (i.e., the balance sheet and the statement of 
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances) provides information about the financial 
position and results of operations of the Municipality's governmental funds by presenting 
sources, uses and balances of current financial resources. Some of these financial statements 
have a budgetary orientation and are aimed to demonstrate the fiscal accountability and the 
individual parts of the Municipality's government. Fiscal accountability represents the 
Municipality's responsibility to justify that its actions in the current fiscal year have complied with 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
As of June 30, 2011 

public decisions concerning the raising and spending of public moneys in the short term 
(generally one fiscal year). 

The focus of the GFFS is on major governmental funds, which represent the Municipality's most 
important funds. Accordingly, the Municipality is required to segregate governmental funds 
between major and non-major categories within the GFFS. Major individual governmental funds 
are reported individually as separate columns in the GFFS, while data from all non-major 
governmental funds are aggregated into a single column, regardless of fund type. 

By definition, the Municipality's general fund is considered a major governmental fund for 
financial reporting purposes. In addition, any other governmental fund would be classified as a 
major governmental fund in the GFFS if it meets both of the following criteria: 

• Ten percent criterion -Its total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures of that 
individual governmental fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding element total 
(assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures) for all governmental funds. 

• Five percent criterion -Its total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures of that 
individual governmental fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding element total 
(assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures) for all governmental and enterprise funds. 

For the purposes of applying the aforementioned major fund criteria, no eliminations of interfund 
balances have been made. In the case of governmental funds, total revenues for these 
purposes means all revenues, including operating and non-operating revenues (net of 
allowances for uncollectible accounts}, except for other financing sources. Total expenditures for 
these purposes mean all expenditures, including operating and non-operating expenditures, 
except for other financing uses. 

In the case of enterprise funds, when applying the aforementioned major fund criteria, revenues 
and expenses include all operating statement revenues and expenses (both operating and 
nonoperating) including capital contributions, special items, but not extraordinary items. 

The Municipality adopted the provisions of GASS Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting 
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASS No. 54), which modified the interpretations of 
certain terms within the definition of the special revenue funds and the types of activities the 
Municipality may choose to report in those funds. GASS No. 54 also clarified the capital projects 
fund type definition for better alignment with the needs of preparers and users. Definitions of 
other governmental fund types were also modified for clarity and consistency. 

Pursuant to the provisions set forth by GASS No. 54, the Municipality reported the following 
governmental funds in the accompanying GFFS: 

General Fund - is the Municipality's main operating fund used to account for and report all 
financial and reported resources and governmental activities, except for those required to be 
accounted for in another fund . It is presumed that the Municipality's governmental activities have 
been reported in the general fund except for transactions for which one of the following 
compelling reasons has required the use of another fund: (1) legal requirements, (2) USGMP 
requirements or (3) the demands of sound financial administration requiring the use of a 
governmental fund other than the general fund. Its revenues consist mainly of taxes, licenses 
and permits, intergovernmental, charges for services and other. 
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Debt Service Fund - is a major governmental fund used to account for and report for the 
accumulation of financial resources that are restricted for, and the payment of, principal and 
interest for: (1) bonds payable for which debt service payments are legally mandated to be 
accounted for in a debt service fund and (2) certain special long-term obligations for which the 
Municipality is being accumulating financial resources in advance to pay principal and interest 
payments maturing in future years. 

The outstanding balance of certain general long-term obligations for which debt service 
payments do not involve the advance accumulation of resources (such as certain notes payable, 
obligations under capital leases, accrued compensated absences, landfill obligation, claims and 
judgments, net pension liability and other long-term obligations) are only accounted for in the 
accompanying government-wide statement of net assets. The debt service payments of such 
obligations are generally accounted for in the governmental fund which accounted for the 
financial resources used for the payment of such debts. Principal and interest due on July 1 of 
the following fiscal year are accounted for as a fund liability, if resources are available as of June 
30 for its payment. 

Special Revenue Funds - are non-major funds (reported within other governmental funds) used 
to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than trusts for 
individuals, private organizations, or other governments or for major capital projects) that are 
legally restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or 
capital projects. Resources restricted or committed to expenditure for purposes normally 
financed from the general fund are generally accounted for in the general fund provided that all 
applicable legal requirements can be appropriately satisfied and the use of special revenue 
funds is not required unless they are legally mandated. 

Capttal Project Funds - are non-major funds (reported wtthin other governmental funds) used to 
account for and report financial resources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for 
capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of major capital faciltties, including those 
outlays financed by general obligation bond proceeds (other than those financed by proprietary 
funds or in trust funds for individuals, private organizations, or other governments). The use of 
the capital projects funds has been limited to major capttal acquisitions, construction or 
improvement activities that would distort financial resources trend data if not reported separately 
from the other Municipality's operating activities. The routine purchases of minor capttalizable 
assets (such as furniture, office equipment, vehicles and other minor capital assets or 
improvements) have been reported in the governmental fund from which financial resources 
were used for the payment. 

The Municipality periodically undertakes a comprehensive evaluation of its fund structure to 
ensure that it complies wtth all aspects that are of importance to users of general purpose 
external financial reports. Consequently, all superfluous funds and some internal funds currently 
used by the Municipality in the day-to-day accounting procedures have not been reported as 
individual governmental funds in the accompanying fund financial statements. Accordingly, the 
accompanying fund financial statements include only the minimum number of funds consistent 
with legal and operating requirements and, consequently, certain types of similar internal funds 
have been combined into single funds in the accompanying fund financial statements. 

4) The proprietary fund financial statements (statement of net assets - proprietary fund, statement 
of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets - proprietary fund , and statement of cash 
flows - proprietary fund) present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the 
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International Center fund (lnCF), which accounts for the leasing operations and maintenance of a 
real estate property acquired on December 15, 2010 through the issuance of revenue bonds 
amounting to $55,071,940. 

In addition to the required financial reporting requirements referred to above, the accompanying 
basic financial statements are accompanied by the Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet -
Governmental Funds, and Reconciliation of Statement of Net assets - Proprietary Fund to the 
GWFS Statement of Net Assets; and the Reconciliation of the Statements of Revenues, 
Expenditures\Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances\Net Assets - Governmental Funds and 
Proprietary Funds to the GWFS Statement of Activities. 

5) The notes to the financial statements provide information that is essential to a user's 
understanding of the basic financial statements. 

6) Required supplementary information such as the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General 
Fund and the Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund. 

8. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation 

Government-wide financial statements - The accompanying GWFS are prepared using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Subject to the additional rules and 
limitations detailed below, revenues (including interest on deposits and investments) are generally 
recorded when earned and expenses are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows. 

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like 
transactions are generally recorded when the exchange takes place. In exchange transactions, each 
party to the transaction receives and gives up essentially equal values. An exchange-like transaction is 
one in which there is an identifiable exchange and the values exchanged, though related, may not be quite 
equal. The accompanying basic financial statements include exchange-like transactions such as license 
fees, fines, penalties, forfeitures, permits, charges for services, and most miscellaneous revenues, which 
are recorded as revenues when collected because they are generally not measurable until actually 
received. 

The Municipality groups its non-exchange transactions into the following four classes in the accompanying 
basic financial statements: (a) derived tax revenues, (b) imposed non-exchange revenues, (c) government 
mandated non-exchange transactions, and (d) voluntary non-exchange transactions. 

In the case of derived tax revenue transactions, which result from assessments that the Municipality 
places on exchange transactions, receivables and revenues are recorded when the underlying exchange 
has occurred. 

In the case of imposed non-exchange revenue transactions (such as property taxes and municipal license 
taxes), which result from assessments made by the Municipality on non-governmental entities, including 
individuals, other than assessments on exchange transactions, receivables are generally recorded in the 
period when an enforceable legal claim has arisen. Property taxes and municipal license are generally 
recorded as revenues (net of amounts considered not collectible) in the fiscal year when resources are 
required to be used for the first fiscal year that the use of the resources is permitted. 

For government-mandated non-exchange transactions (such as intergovernmental grants and 
contributions), receivables and revenues are generally recorded when all eligibility requirements imposed 
by the provider have been met. For the majority of grants, the Municipality must expend resources on the 
specific purpose or project before the provider reimburses any amounts. Therefore, revenue is generally 
recognized as qualifying reimbursable expenditures are incurred. 
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For voluntary non-exchange transactions (such as donations and certain grants and entitlements) 
receivables and revenues are generally accounted for in the same manner as government-mandated non­
exchange transactions discussed above. 

Events that are neither exchange nor non-exchange transactions are recorded when it is probable that a 
loss has been incurred and the amount of loss is reasonably estimable. 

Interests on deposits are recorded when earned since these revenues are considered both measurable 
and available at June 30, 2011 . Receipts of any type of revenue sources collected in advance for use in 
the following fiscal year are recorded as deferred revenues. 

According to GASS No. 34, all general capital assets and the unmatured long-term liabilities are recorded 
only in the accompanying Statement of Net Assets. The measurement focus and the basis of accounting 
used in the accompanying GWFS differ significantly from the measurement focus and basis of accounting 
used in the preparation of the accompanying GFFS. Therefore, the accompanying GFFS include 
reconciliations, as detailed in the accompanying table of contents, to better identify the relationship 
between the GWFS and the GFFS. 

Governmental fund financial statements - The accompanying GFFS are reported using the current 
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
generally recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be 
available when they are collectible within the current fiscal year or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities 
of the current fiscal year. For this purpose, the Municipality generally considers most revenues (municipal 
licenses taxes, construction excise taxes, sales and use taxes, interests on deposit, intergovernmental 
grants and contributions and certain charges for services) to be available if collected within 90 days after 
June 30, 2011. At June 30, 2011 , all revenue sources met this availability criterion. 

Property taxes are all considered susceptible to accrual if commonly collected within 60 days following the 
end of the fiscal period, unless unusual circumstances justify a greater period. The Municipality 
understands that the unusual criteria was met through the approval of Act No. 94 by the Legislature of 
Puerto Rico which established an incentive plan for the payment of real and personal property tax dues. 
This Act provides an amnesty to all property tax payers forgiving all penalties, charges and interest of the 
unpaid principal of past-due property tax liability. The period that tax payers have to enjoy for such 
benefit extends until October 11 , 2011 . The unpaid property taxes covered under this Act are those 
related to fiscal year 2010 and earlier (for personal property) and for 2009 and earlier (for real property). 
In addition, the Municipality created the Municipal Internal Revenue Enforcement Division (ARIM), within 
the Finance Department, dedicated exclusive to improve revenues through aggressive collection 
methods, including the prosecution of criminal charges to those taxpayers who violates the tax law. The 
incentive plan and ARIM justify the extension of the collection period for revenue recognition purposes 
from 60 to 360 days following June 30, 2011, as defined in NCGA Interpretation 3. The extension of the 
collection period is only applicable for the year ended June 30, 2011 . The Municipality will continue with 
the collection period of 60 days beginning in July 1, 2011 unless other unusual circumstances arise. 

Other revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual include municipal license taxes, sales and use 
taxes, construction excise taxes, intergovernmental grants and contributions, interest on deposits, and 
charges for services. These principal revenue sources meet both measurability and availability criteria in 
the accompanying GFFS. 

In a manner similar to the GWFS, but subject to and limited by the availability criteria discussed above, all 
revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange, exchange-like 
transactions are also generally recorded when the exchange takes place while all revenues, expenses, 
gains, losses and assets resulting from non-exchange transactions are recorded when an enforceable 
legal claim arises or when all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
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Interests on deposits are recorded when earned since these revenues are considered both measurable 
and available at June 30, 2011 . 

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Interpretation No. 6, Recognftion and Measurement of Certain 
Liabilfties and Expendftures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements (GASBI No. 6), in the absence of 
an explicit requirement (i.e., the absence of an applicable modification, discussed below) the Municipality 
generally accrues a governmental fund liability and expenditure (including salaries, professional services, 
supplies, utilities, etc.) in the period in which the government incurs the liability, to the extent that these 
liabilities are normally expected to be liquidated in a timely manner and in full with current available 
financial resources. The accompanying Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds generally reflects only 
assets that will be converted into cash to satisfy current liabilities. Long-term assets and those assets that 
will not be converted into cash to satisfy current liabilities are generally not accounted for in the 
accompanying Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds. At the same time, long-term liabilities (generally, 
those unmatured that will not require the use of current financial resources to pay them) are not 
accounted for in the accompanying Balance Sheet- Governmental Funds. 

Modifications to the accrual basis of accounting include: 

1) Principal and interest on bonds payable are recorded when they mature (when payment is due), 
except for principal and interest of bonds due on July 1, 2011 , which are recorded as 
governmental fund liabilities at June 30, 2011 which is the date when resources were available in 
the debt service fund. 

2) Compensated absences, net pension liability, claims and judgments and the estimated liability for 
municipal solid waste landfill closure and post-closure care costs are recorded only when they 
mature (when payment is due). 

3) Certain other accrued liabilities not due and payable (unmatured) or not normally expected to be 
liquidated in full and in a timely manner with available and expendable financial resources, are 
recorded in the accompanying Statement of Net Assets. Such liabilities are recorded in the 
governmental funds when they mature. 

The measurement focus of the GFFS is on decreases of net financial resources (expenditures) rather than 
expenses. Most expenditures are measurable and are recorded when the related governmental fund 
liability is incurred. Allocation of costs, such as depreciation and amortization, are recorded in the 
accompanying Statement of Activities, but are not recorded in the accompanying GFFS. 

Proprietary fund financial statements - The accompanying proprietary fund financial statements 
(PFFS) are reported using the economic measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, similar 
to the government-wide financial statements described above. Accordingly, the PFFS distinguish 
operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. The major operating revenue of the Municipality's 
proprietary fund is from rent charges collected by the International Center fund from its warehousing and 
leasing facili ties. 

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and A/CPA Pronouncements, the lnCF has the 
option to elect and apply all nongovernmental financial accounting pronouncements issued after 
November 30, 1989 to its business-type activities and enterprise funds, unless these conflict with an 
applicable GASB pronouncement. The Municipality has elected not to follow nongovernmental financial 
accounting standards. 
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1) Cash, cash with fiscal agent and restricted cash: 

Notes to Financial Statements 
As of June 30, 2011 

The Municipality's cash is composed of: (1) cash on hand, and (2) demand deposits in commercial 
banks and in the Government Development Bank of Puerto Rico (GOB). 

Cash with fiscal agent in the debt service fund represents special additional property tax collections 
retained by the Government of Puerto Rico, deposited in GOB, and restricted for the payment of the 
Municipality's debt service, as established by law. Cash with fiscal agent in the other governmental 
funds consists of unused proceeds of bonds and notes committed for the acquisition, construction or 
improvements of major capital facilities and other capital assets. 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents in other governmental funds represents mortgage escrow 
deposits, reserve for replacement and residual receipts deposited with the mortgagee, and are 
recorded at fair value. 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents in the proprietary fund represents resources set aside for the 
payment of the Municipality's debt service related to International Center, as established in the bond 
indentures. 

2) Receivables and payables: 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the 
end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of 
interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All 
other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." 

The carrying value of advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, if any, are 
offset by nonspendable fund balances of the same amounts in the applicable governmental funds to 
indicate that such resources are not considered current available financial resources at June 30, 2011 
since they are not expected to be converted to cash soon enough after the current fiscal year-end. 

Receivables consist of all revenues earned but not collected at June 30, 2011 . These accounts 
receivable are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which are determined 
based upon past collection experience, historical trends, current economic conditions and the periodic 
aging of accounts receivable. Intergovernmental receivables in the general fund represent mostly 
contributions from the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority ("PREPA") as payment in lieu of taxes. 
Intergovernmental receivables in the other governmental funds represent amounts owed to the 
Municipality for reimbursement of expenditures incurred pursuant to federally funded programs and the 
amount in the debt service fund represents the distribution of property tax collected which is restricted 
for the debt service. 

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future 
Revenues of Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues (GASB 48), transactions in which 
the Municipality is willing to exchange an interest in its expected future cash flows from collecting 
specific receivables or specific future revenues for immediate cash payments, generally, a single lump 
sum are either regarded as a sale or as a collateralized borrowing resulting in a liability depending on 
its continuing involvement with those receivables or future revenues. Accordingly, a transaction will be 
reported as a collateralized borrowing unless the criteria indicating that a sale has taken place are met. 
If it is determined that a transaction involving receivables should be reported as a sale, the difference 
between the carrying value of the receivables and the proceeds should be recognized in the period of 
the sale in the accompanying Statement of Activities and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds. If it is determined that a transaction involving 
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future revenues should be reported as a sale, the revenue is deferred and amortized, except when 
specific criteria are met. 

According to the criteria set forth by GASS. No. 48, there were no transactions involving receivables 
that should be reported as a sale as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. 

3) Inventories: 

Inventories in the GFFS have been recorded using the consumption method and are stated at the 
lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market. Inventories consist primary of supplies held for 
consumption and medicines used in providing health care services. 

The carrying value of inventories are offseted by nonspendable fund balances of the same amounts in 
the applicable governmental funds to indicate that such resources are not considered current available 
financial resources at June 30, 2011 since they are not expected to be converted to cash after the 
current fiscal year-end. 

4) Loans receivable and allowance for loan losses: 

Loans receivable in the GFFS are presented at their net realizable value (outstanding principal 
balance reduced by an allowance for uncollectible loans). The allowance for uncollectible loans has 
been determined based upon past collection experience, historical trends, current economic conditions 
and the periodic aging of the loans receivable. The carrying value of loans receivable is offset by 
nonspendable fund balance in the same amount in the other governmental funds to indicate that such 
resources are not considered current available financial resources at June 30, 2011 since they are not 
expected to be currently converted to cash after the current fiscal year-end. 

5) Other assets: 

The carrying value of other assets are offset by nonspendable fund balance in the same amount in 
the general fund to indicate that such resources are not considered current available financial 
resources at June 30, 2011 . 

6) Real Estate Held for Sale: 

Real estate held for sale is canied at the lower of the estimated fair value or historical cost. The 
estimated historical cost is determined by a third-party professional assessment or based upon an 
appraisal, minus estimated disposal costs. Subsequent declines in the value of real estate held for 
sale is charged to expenditure/expense. 

The carrying value of real estate held for sale is offset by nonspendable fund balance in the same 
amount in the other governmental funds to indicate that such resources are not considered current 
available financial resources at June 30, 2011 since they are not expected to be currently converted 
to cash after the current fiscal year-end. 

7) Deferred charges: 

Deferred charges in the accompanying Statement of Net Assets consist of bond issuance costs, net of 
accumulated amortization of $2.5 million. Deferred charges are amortized over the term of the related 
debt using the straight-line method. In the GFFS, bond issuance costs are recorded in the current 
period as expendttures, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received. 

40 )1---------



MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

8) Capital assets: 

Notes to Financial Statements 
As of June 30, 2011 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the GWFS. The Municipality defines capital assets as 
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two 
years. Such assets are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or 
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of 
donation. 

Estimated historical costs based on deflated current costs were used to value a significant portion of 
the infrastructure constructed or acquired prior to June 30, 2002 and certain lands, buildings, 
structures and building improvements. The method used to deflate the current costs with an 
approximate price index was used only in the case of certain items for which the historical cost 
documentation was not available. Actual historical costs were used to value the infrastructure 
acquired or constructed after June 30, 2002 as well as, construction in progress, machinery and 
equipment and licensed vehicles acquired prior or after such date. 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add value to the asset or materially extend 
assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as 
projects are constructed. 

Depreciation and amortization expense is recorded only in the GWFS. Depreciable capital assets are 
generally depreciated or amortized over their estimated useful lives under the straight-line method, 
except for equipment held under capital leases which is depreciated over the shorter of its estimated 
useful life or the lease term. No depreciation or amortization has been recorded for land, work of arts 
and construction in progress. The estimated useful lives of other major capital asset categories are: 

~ 
Buildings 
Infrastructure 
Building and site improvements 
Intangible assets 
Vehicles 
Equipment 

Years 
40 
40 
15 
10 
5 

3 to 5 

Depreciation and amortization expense of capital assets is recorded as a direct expense of the 
function/program specifically identified with the asset. Depreciation and amortization of infrastructure 
is not allocated to various functions/programs but reported as direct expenses of the public works and 
urban development functions. 

Impaired capital assets that will no longer be used by the Municipality, if any, are reported at the lower 
of carrying value or estimated fair value. Impairment losses on capital assets with physical damages 
that will continue to be used by the Municipality are measured using the restoration cost approach. 
Impairments of capital assets that are subject to a change in the manner or duration of use, or assets 
affected by enactment or approval of laws or regulations or other changes in environmental factors or 
assets that are subject to technological changes or obsolescence, if any, are measured using the 
service units approach. 

In the GFFS, the net present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the capital 
lease is recorded simultaneously as: (1) expenditures and (2) other financing sources. Minimum lease 
payments are recorded as expenditures in the governmental fund. 

Intangible assets at June 30, 2011 , consist primarily of computer software. 
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In the GFFS, deferred revenue arises when one of the following situations occur: 

a. Potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for revenue 
recognition in the current period (unavailable revenue). As previously discussed, available 
is defined as due (or past due) at June 30, 2011 and collected within 90 days (October 11 , 
2011 for property taxes) thereafter to pay obligations due at June 30. In subsequent 
periods, when both criteria are met, the liability for deferred revenue is removed and 
revenue is recognized. 

b. The Municipality receives resources before it has a legal claim to them (unearned revenue). 
In subsequent periods, when the revenue recognition criterion is met, the liability for 
deferred revenue is removed and revenue is recognized. 

Deferred revenues at the government-wide level arise only when the Municipality receives resources 
before it has a legal claim to them. 

10) Long-term obligations: 

The liabilities reported in the GWFS include the general and special obligation bonds, long-term notes, 
and other long-term liabilities, such as vacations and sick leave (compensated absences), claims and 
judgments, long-term liabilities to other governmental entities and third parties, and municipal solid 
waste landfill postclosure care costs. Bond issuance costs are reported in the GWFS as deferred 
charges and amortized over the term of the related debt using the straight-line method. 

In the GFFS, governmental fund types recognize bond issuance costs during the current period. The 
face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources, while bond issuance costs, whether 
or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures in the general 
fund. 

Principal and interest payments on bonds due on July 1, 2011 are recorded as governmental fund 
liabilities in the GFFS (debt service fund) when resources are available in the debt service funds (June 
30, 2011 ). 

Non-interest bearing notes payable are accounted for under the provisions of Opinion No. 21, Interest 
on Receivables and Payables, issued by the Accounting Principles Board (APB No. 21 ). According to 
APB No. 21, the Municipality has recorded such notes at present value with an imputed interest rate ~ 
that approximates the rate that would have been used, using the same terms and conditions, if it had 
been negotiated by an independent lender. In the accompanying statement of net assets, such notes 
payable are reported net of the applicable unamortized discount, which is the difference between the 
present value and the face amount of the notes. The discount is amortized over the life of the notes 
using the effective interest method. Amortization of the notes discount is recorded as part of interest 
expense in the statement of activities. In the GFFS, notes discount is recognized as other financing 
uses during the current period. 

11) Compensated absences: 

Compensated absences are accounted for under the provisions of Statement No. 16, Accounting for 
Compensated Absences, issued by GASB (GASB No. 16). Compensated absences include paid time 
off made available to employees in connection with vacation, sick leave and compensatory time. The 
liability for compensated absences is reported in the Statement of Net Assets. A liability for 
compensated absences is reported in the fund financial statements only when matured (when 
payment is due), for example, as a result of employee resignations or retirements. 
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The liability for compensated absences recorded in the accompanying statement of net assets is 
limited to leave that: (1) is attributable to services already rendered on or before June 30, 2011 and (2) 
is not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the Municipality and the employee 
(such as illness). Compensated absences that relate to future services or are contingent on a specific 
event outside the control of the employer or the employee are accounted for in the period when those 
services are rendered or those events take place. The liability for compensated absences includes 
salary-related costs, which are directly and incrementally related to the amount of salary paid to the 
employee (such as employer's share of Social Security truces and Medicare truces). 

The vacation policy of the Municipality provides for the accumulation of regular vacations at a rate of 
2.5 days per month (30 days per year) per employee up to a mrucimum of 60 days. Employees 
accumulate regular sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month (18 days per year) up to a mrucimum of 
90 days. All vacation and sick leave days accumulated by employees in excess of 60 days and 90 
days, respectively, are paid to employees each year, if not consumed, as required by law. 

Upon termination of employment, an employee receives compensation for all accumulated unpaid 
regular vacation leave at the current rate. In the case of regular sick leave, if the employee terminates 
his or her employment before reaching 10 years of services, such regular sick leave is not paid to the 
employee, if not consumed. After 10 years of services, any regular sick leave balance is paid to the 
employee. Accumulated vacation time is fully vested to the employee at any time. 

12) Claims and judgments: 

The estimated amount of the liability for claims and judgments, which is due on demand, such as from 
adjudicated or settled claims, is recorded in the general fund when they mature (generally, when 
payment is due). Those liabilities are recorded in the accompanying statement of net assets as 
incurred, pursuant to the provisions of FASB Accounting Standards Codification 450, Contingencies. 

13) Estimated Liability for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Post-closure Costs: 

The estimated liability for municipal solid waste landfill closure and post-closure care costs (including 
monitoring and maintenance) include an estimate of all post-closing care costs to be incurred after the 
close of the Municipality's solid waste landfill under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 18, 
Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Post-closure Care Costs (GASB No. 18). 

In the accompanying government-wide Statement of Net Assets, this liability was recognized over the 
useful life of the landfill prior to its closing in 2000, even though such costs are being incurred after the 
close of the landfill. The estimated of closing and post closing costs were determined using current 
costs. The liability is adjusted annually to reflect the effects of inflation, advances in technology, 
changes in regulations or similar changes. 

At the governmental funds' level, landfill closure and post-closure care costs are recorded in the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds as 
expenditures when they mature (generally, when payment or related disbursements are due). 

14) Termination benefits: 

Termination benefits are accounted for under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 47, Accounting 
for Termination Benefits. Accordingly, the Municipality generally recognizes a liability and an expense 
for voluntary termination benefits (early-retirement incentives) in the accompanying GWFS when the 
offer is accepted and the amount can be estimated. A liability and expense for involuntary termination 
benefits (for example, severance benefits) is generally recognized when a plan of termination has 
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been approved by the Municipal Legislature, the plan has been communicated to the employees, and 
the amount can be estimated. 

In the accompanying GFFS, liabilities and expenditures for termination benefits are generally 
recognized to the extent the liabilities are normally expected to be liquidated with expendable 
available financial resources (when they mature, generally when payment or related disbursements 
are due). 

Termination benefits for which the benefit terms establish an obligation to pay specific amounts on 
fixed or determinable dates are measured at the discounted present value of expected future benefit 
payments (including an assumption regarding changes in future cost levels during the periods 
covered by the employer's commitment to provide the benefits). 

15) Fund balances: 

The Municipality adopted the provisions of GASS Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and 
Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASS No. 54), which enhanced the usefulness offund balance 
information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied. 
This statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on 
the extent to which the Municipality is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the 
resources reported in governmental funds. 

Pursuant to the provisions of GASS No. 54, the accompanying GFFS report fund balance amounts 
that are considered nonspendable, such as fund balance associated with inventories. Other fund 
balances have been reported as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned, based on the 
relative strength of the constraints that control how specific amounts can be spent, as described as 
follows: 

a. Nonspendable - Represent resources that cannot be spent readily with cash or are legally 
or contractually required not to be spent, including but not limited to inventories, prepaid 
items, and long-term balances of loans and notes receivable. 

b. Restricted - Represent resources that can be spent only for the specific purposes 
stipulated by constitutional provisions, external resource providers (externally imposed by 
creditors or grantors), or through enabling legislation (that is, legislation that creates a 
new revenue source and restricts its use). Effectively, restrictions may be changed or 
lifted only with the consent of resource providers. 

c. Committed - Represent resources used for specific purposes, imposed by formal action of 
the Municipal's highest level of decision making authority (Municipal Legislature through 
resolutions and ordinances) and can only be changed by a similar law, ordinance or 
resolution, no later than the end of fiscal year. 

d. Assigned - Represent resources intended to be used by the Municipality for specific 
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed (generally 
executive orders approved by the Mayor). Intent can be expressed by the Municipal 
Legislature, the Mayor or by an official or body to which the Municipal Legislature 
delegates authority in conformity with the Autonomous Municipalities Act of Puerto Rico, 
as amended. In governmental funds other than the general fund, assigned fund balance 
represents the remaining amount that is not restricted or committed. 

e. Unassigned - Represent the residual classification for the Municipality's general fund and 
includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other funds, 
the unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from 
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overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed, or 
assigned. 

Negative fund balance amounts are assigned amounts reduced to the amount that will 
raise the fund balance to zero. Consequently, negative residual amounts in restricted, 
committed and assigned fund balance classifications have been reclassified to 
unassigned fund balances. 

The Municipality reports resources constrained to stabilization as a specified purpose (restricted or 
committed fund balance in the general fund) only if: (1) such resources meet the other criteria for 
those classifications, as described above and (2) the circumstances or conditions that signal the need 
for stabilization are identified in sufficient detail and are not expected to occur routinely. However, 
the Municipality has not entered into any stabilization-like arrangements, nor has set aside material 
financial resources for emergencies and has not established formal minimum fund balance amounts 
as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. 

In situations when an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in multiple 
fund balance classifications, the Municipality uses restricted resources first, and then unrestricted 
resources. Within unrestricted resources, the Municipality generally spends committed resources 
first, followed by assigned resources, and then unassigned resources as they are needed. 

16) Net Assets: 

Restricted net assets have been reported pursuant to the provisions of GASS Statement No. 46, Net 
Assets Restricted by Enabling Legislation (GASB No. 46). Those net assets consist of net resources 
restricted by external parties (such as debt covenants, creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or 
regulations of other governments, etc.), or net assets for which constraints are imposed by 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Enabling legislation consists of legislation that authorizes the Municipality to assess, levy, charge or 
otherwise mandate payment of resources (from external resource providers). Enabling legislation 
establishes restrictions if it includes a legally enforceable requirement that those resources be used 
only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation. A legally enforceable enabling legislation 
restriction is one that a party external to the Municipality (such as citizens, public interest groups, or 
the judiciary) can compel the Municipality to honor. The Municipality periodically reevaluates the 
legal enforceability of an enabling legislation to determine if any of the resources raised by the 
enabling legislation are used for a purpose not specified by the enabling legislation or if the 
Municipality has other cause for consideration. 

The classification of restricted net assets identifies resources that have been received or earned by 
the Municipality with an explicit understanding between the Municipality and the resource providers 
that the resources would be used for specific purposes. Grants, contributions and donations are often 
given under those kinds of conditions. Bond indentures also often limit the use of bond proceeds to 
specific purposes. 

Internally imposed designations of resources, including earmarking, are not reported as restricted net 
assets. These designations consist of management's plans for the use of resources, which are 
subject to change at the discretion of the Municipal Legislature. 

Net assets are classified in the accompanying Statement of Net Assets within the following four 
categories: 
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a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - This net asset category consists of capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, reduced by the outstanding 
balances of bonds payable, notes payable and other debts that are attributed to the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. For the purposes of determining 
the outstanding debt attributed to capital assets, the total long-term debt related to the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of capital assets has been reduced by any related 
unspent debt proceeds and any related unamortized debt issuance costs. Accordingly, all 
non-capital long-term debts (such as a portion of bonds and notes payable) have been 
excluded from the computation since these were originally issued for certain purposes other 
than the acquisition, construction or improvement of capital assets. In addition, the 
outstanding debt attributed to capital assets does not include accrued interest payable, non­
capital accrued liabilities, inter-fund loans and other financial assets. 

b. Net assets restricted for debt service - This net asset category consists of net resources 
restricted by bond indentures, debt covenants, and certain laws and regulations to cover the 
debt service payments of bonds and notes payable. 

c. Net assets restricted for other purposes - This net asset category consists of net resources 
externally restricted by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws and regulations to cover specific 
program purposes. 

d. Unrestricted net assets - Generally, this category consists of the excess of liabilities over 
related assets that are neither externally nor legally restricted, neither invested in capital 
assets. Assets reported within this category often have constraints that are imposed by 
management but can be removed or modified. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Municipality's policy to 
generally use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

17) lnterfund and intra-entity transactions: 

The Municipality has the following types of transactions among funds: 

a. Transfers - Represent flows of assets (permanent reallocation of financial resources among 
governmental funds) without equivalent flows of assets in return and without a requirement 
for repayment. Inter-fund transfers are reported when incurred as other financing uses 
(Transfers-out) in the governmental fund making transfers and as other financing sources 
(Transfers-in) in the governmental fund receiving transfers. 

b. Intra-Entity Transactions - Represent amounts provided with a requirement for repayment, 
which are recorded as "due from" in the lender governmental fund and "due to" in the 
borrower governmental fund. For amounts not expected to be collected within a reasonable 
period of time, inter-fund receivables/payables are reduced to the estimated realizable value 
and the amount that is not expected to be repaid is reported as an operating transfer from 
the governmental fund that made the loan. 

In the GFFS, inter-fund activity has not been eliminated, as permitted by USGAAP. 

18) Accounting for Pension Costs and Post-Employment Benefits: 

On July 1, 2007, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 50, Pension 
Disclosures (GASB No. 50), which amended GASB No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and 
Local Government Employers (GASB No. 27) by requiring disclosure of how the contractually 
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required contribution rate is determined by governments participating in multi-employer cost-sharing 
pension plans. 

The Municipality accounts for pension costs from the standpoint of a participant in a multiple-employer 
cost-sharing plan. Accordingly, pension costs recognized in the accompanying basic financial 
statements are equal to the statutorily required contributions, with a liability recorded for any unpaid 
required contributions. 

For the purpose of applying the requirements of GASS No. 27, the state government of the 
Government of Puerto Rico is considered to be the sponsor of the Employees' Retirement System of 
the Government of Puerto Rico and Its Instrumentalities (the "System") and System 2000, a multi­
employer cost-sharing defined benefit pension plan and a hybrid defined contribution plan, 
respectively, in which the employees of the Municipality participate. The Municipality is considered a 
participant, and not a sponsor, of these retirement systems since the majority of the participants in the 
aforementioned pension trust funds are employees of the Government of Puerto Rico and the basic 
financial statements of such retirement systems are part of the financial reporting entity of the 
Government of Puerto Rico. 

19) Risk financing: 

The Municipality carries commercial insurance to cover property and casualty, theft, tort claims and 
other losses. Insurance policies are negotiated by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department and costs 
are allocated among all the municipalities of Puerto Rico. The Department of Treasury pays the 
insurance premiums on behalf of the Municipality and then is reimbursed each year through monthly 
equal payments made by the Municipality. 

The Municipality carries insurance coverage for death and bodily injuries caused by automobile 
accidents. This insurance is obtained through the Automobile Accidents Compensation 
Administration (AACA), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. This insurance is 
compulsory for all licensed vehicles used on public roads and highways in Puerto Rico. The annual 
premium is $35 per licensed motor vehicle, which is paid directly to AACA. 

The Municipality obtains workers' compensation insurance coverage through the State Insurance 
Fund Corporation (SIFC), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. This insurance 
covers workers against injuries, disability or death because of work or employment-related accidents, 
or because of illness suffered as a consequence of their employment. 

The Municipality obtains unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability, and drivers' 
insurance coverage for its employees through various insurance programs administered by the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico's Department of Labor and Human Resources (DOL). These 
insurance programs cover workers against unemployment and provide supplementary insurance 
coverage for temporary disability, or death because of work or employment-related accidents or 
because of illness suffered as a consequence of their employment. Unemployment compensation, 
non-occupational disability and drivers' insurance premiums are paid directly to DOL on a cost 
reimbursement basis. 

The Municipality also obtains medical insurance coverage from several health insurance companies 
for its employees. Different health insurance coverage and premium options are negotiated each 
year by the Department of Treasury on behalf of the Municipality. The current insurance policies 
have not been canceled or terminated at June 30, 2011 . Premiums are paid on a monthly basis 
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directly to the insurance company. In the past three years, the Municipality has not settled claims 
that exceeded insurance coverage. 

Cost of insurance allocated to the Municipality for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 amounted to 
approximately $10 million. The current insurance policies have not been cancelled or terminated. 
Workers' compensation insurance covering all municipal employees for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2011 amounted to approximately $9 million. 

20) Direct charges: 

Pursuant to and determined by an internal cost allocation plan, certain costs initially borne by the 
general fund are then billed as direct charges to other funds of the Municipality. Revenues from these 
charges are accounted for in the government-wide Statement of Activities as general government and 
in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficit) as charges for 
services in the general fund. The corresponding expenses appear as function/program costs in the 
Statement of Activities. 

21) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with USGAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

22) Reclassifications: 

Various reclassifications have been made in the accompanying basic financial statements which 
affect the comparability with the basic financial statements issued for previous fiscal years. 

23) Future adoption of accounting pronouncements: 

The GASB has issued the following statements that have effective dates after June 30, 2011: 

a. GASB Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession 
Arrangements (GASB 60). The requirements of this Statement are effective for the fiscal 
year commencing on July I, 2011 . 

b. GASB Statement No. 61 , The Financial Reporting Entity (GASB 61 ). The requirements of : 
this Statement are effective for the fiscal year commencing after June 15, 2012. 

c. GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance 
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and A/CPA Pronouncements (GASB 62). The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for the fiscal year commencing on July I, 2012. 

d. GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred 
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position (GASB 63). The requirements of this Statement are 
effective for the fiscal year commencing after December 15, 2011 . 

e. GASB Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting 
Termination Provisions, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 53 (GASB 64). The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for the fiscal year commencing after June 15, 
2011 . 

The impact of these statements on the Municipality's basic financial statements has not yet been 
determined. 
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The Municipality's deposits at June 30, 2011 are composed of: (1) demand deposits in commercial banks and 
(2) demand deposits in the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GOB, fiscal agent). 

The Municipality follows the practice of pooling cash. At June 30, 2011 , the pool cash account in commercial 
banks had a balance of $47.5 million of which $3.6 million, $10.5 million, and $33.4 million have been recorded 
in the general fund, the non-major capital project funds and the non-major special revenue funds, respectively. 
The balance in the pooled cash account is available to meet current operating requirements and any 
unrestricted excess, if any, is generally invested in certificates of deposit with commercial banks. Any 
deficiency in the pooled cash account is assumed by the general fund and covered through future budgetary 
appropriations. 

Under the laws and regulations of the Government of Puerto Rico, public funds deposited by the Municipality in 
commercial banks must be fully collateralized for the amounts deposited in excess of the federal depository 
insurance generally provided by the Federal Deposits Insurance Corporation (FDIC). All securities pledged as 
collateral are held by agents designated by the Secretary of the Treasury of the Government of Puerto Rico, 
but not in the Municipality's name. 

Cash with fiscal agent in the debt service fund consists principally of property and sales tax collections 
amounting to $102.9 million that are restricted for the payment of the Municipality's debt service, as required by 
law. Cash with fiscal agent of $5.0 million in the general fund consists mainly of contributions awarded by the 
Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority that are restricted for the acquisition, construction and improvement of 
certain minor infrastructure assets. Cash with fiscal agent amounting to $90.2 million in other governmental 
funds consist principally of unspent proceeds of bonds that are restricted for the acquisition, construction or 
improvements of major capital facilities and other capital assets. 

Cash in commercial banks in other governmental funds, amounting to $43.9 million, represents the balance of 
interest and non-interest bearing accounts restricted to finance the operations of various federal and state 
funded programs and a revolving loan program. Restricted cash in other governmental funds amounting to 
$2.5 million represents mortgage escrow depos~s. reserve for replacement and residual receipts deposited 
with the mortgagee. 

Restricted cash in commercial banks of $1 .5 million in the proprietary fund represents resources set aside for 
the payment of the Municipality's debt service related to International Center, as established in the bond 
indentures. 

The Municipality follows the provisions GASB Statement No. 40 (GASB No. 40), Deposit and Investment Risk 
Disclosure, an Amendment to GASB Statement No. 3. Accordingly, the following is essential information about 
credit risk, interest rate risk, custodial credit risk, and foreign exchange exposure of deposits and investments 
of the Municipality at June 30, 2011: 

A. Credit risk - This is the ris!< that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. No investments in debt or equity securities were made during the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2011. Therefore, the Municipality's management has concluded that the credit risk related to any 
possible loss related to defaults by commercial banks on the Municipality's deposits and certificates of 
deposits is considered low at June 30, 2011. 

B. Interest rate risk - This is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adversely affect 
the fair value of an investment. The Municipality manages its exposure to declines in fair values by: (1) 
not including debt or equity investments in its investments portfolio at June 30, 2011, (2) limiting the 
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weighted average maturity of its investments in certificates of deposit to periods of three months or less 
and (3) keeping most of its banks deposits and certificates of deposit in interest bearing accounts 
generating interest at prevailing market rates. At June 30, 2011 , the interest rate risk associated with 
the Municipality's cash is considered low since there is no investment in certificates of deposits, debt 
securities or any type of investments that could be affected by changes in interest rates. 

C. Custodial credit risk - In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
Municipality's deposits may not be recovered. The Municipality has adopted, as its custodial credit risk 
policy, the Statement of Uniform Investment Guidelines for the Municipalities of the Government of 
Puerto Rico, issued by the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico as promulgated by Law No. 
113 of August 3, 1995. Accordingly, the Municipality is only allowed to invest in obligations of the 
Government of Puerto Rico, obligations of the United States of America, certificates of deposit, 
commercial paper, bankers' acceptances or in pools of obligations of the municipalities of Puerto Rico, 
which are managed by GDB. At June 30, 2011 , the Municipality has balances deposited in commercial 
banks amounting to $50.1 million which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
(FDIC} up to a maximum of $250,000. In addition, those public funds deposited in commercial banks 
are fully collateralized for the amounts deposited in excess of the federal depository insurance. All 
securities pledged as collateral are held in the Municipality's name by the agents of the Secretary of 
Treasury of the Government of Puerto Rico. Deposits of GOB, amounting to $199.0 million ($202.1 
million bank balance) are uninsured and uncollateralized. However, no losses related to defaults by 
GOB on deposit transactions have been incurred by the Municipality through June 30, 2011 . It is 
management's policy to only maintain deposits in banks affiliated to FDIC to minimize the custodial 
credit risk, except for GDB. Therefore, the Municipality's management has concluded that at June 30, 
2011 , the custodial credit risk associated with the Municipality's cash and cash equivalents and 
certificates of deposits are considered low. 

D. Foreign exchange risk - This is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the value 
of an investment or a deposit. Accordingly to the aforementioned investment guidelines, adopted by 
the Municipality, the Municipality is prevented from investing in foreign securities or any other types of 
investments for which foreign exchange risk exposure may be significant. Accordingly, management 
has concluded that the foreign exchange risk related to the Municipality's deposits is considered low at 
June 30, 2011 . 

4. Receivables 

A. Property Tax 

The Municipality is authorized by Act No. 81 to impose and collect property taxes from any natural or legal 
person that, at January 1 of each calendar year: (1) is engaged in trade or business and is the owner of 
personal or real property used in trade or business or (2) owns residential real property with a value in 
excess of $15,000(at1957 market prices). 

Personal property taxes are self-assessed by taxpayers every year using the book value of personal 
property assets owned by the taxpayer at January 1 (lien; levy date) and reporting such taxable value 
through a personal property tax return filed on May 15 (due date and collection date) subsequent to the 
assessment date. The total personal property tax rate in force at June 30, 2011 was 8.53 percent (of 
which taxpayers pay 8.33 percent and the remaining 0.20 percent is paid by the Department of Treasury, 
as a subsidy). 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
As of June 30, 2011 

Real property taxes are assessed every January 1 (lien; levy date) and are based on estimated current 
values of the property, deflated to 1957 market prices. Real property taxes are due and collectible on 
January 1 and July of every fiscal year. The total real property tax rate in force at June 30, 2010 was 10.53 
percent (of which 10.33 percent is paid by taxpayers and the remaining 0.20 percent is also paid by the 
Department of Treasury, as a subsidy). 

Residential real property occupied by its owner (not engaged in trade or business) is exempt from property 
taxes only on the first $15,000 of the assessed value (at 1957 market prices). For exempt amounts, the 
Department of Treasury assumes the payment of the basic tax (4.00 percent and 6.00 percent for personal 
and real property, respectively), except for property assessed for less than $3,500 (at 1957 market prices), 
for which no payment is made by the Department of Treasury. 

Included within the total personal and real property tax rates, there is a portion of the tax rate in the amount 
of 3.50 percent that is restricted for the Municipality's debt service requirements on bonds. Such amounts 
are recorded in the Municipality's debt service fund. 

On July 10, 2009, the Legislature of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico approved Law No. 37 for the 
purpose, among others, to: (1) increase the real property assessed value by ten times; (2) decrease the 
real property tax rate by ten times; and (3) increase the exempt portion of real property tax from the first 
$15,000 of the assessed value to $150,000. These provisions are effective only for fiscal years 2010, 2011 
and 2012. 

The composition of property taxes receivable is as follows at June 30, 2011 : 

Property tax receivable 
Less: allowance for doubtful 

accounts 
Net property taxes receivable 

Municipal license Tax 

$ 

$ 

Genlral 
fund 
55,839,380 

(38,720,392) 
17,118,988 

DebtSenlce 
Flnll 

$ 1,629,005 

$ 1,629,005 

Total 
$ 57,468,385 

(38,720,392) 
$ 18,747,993 

The Municipality imposes a municipal license tax on all businesses that operate within the Municipality, 
which are not totally or partially exempt from the tax pursuant to the Industrial Incentives Acts of the 
Government of Puerto Rico. This is a self-assessed tax based on the business volume in gross sales as 
shown in the tax return that is due five working days after April 15 of each year. Entities with sales volume 
of $3 million or more must include audited financial statements together with the tax return. During the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 , the tax rates were as follows: 

• Financial business - 1.50% of gross revenues 

• Other organizations - 0.20% for annual revenues up to $1 ,000,000, and 0.50% over such 
volume. 

This tax is due in two equal installments on July 15 and January 15 of each fiscal year. A discount of 5% 
is allowed when full payment is made on or before five working days after April 15. Municipal license tax 
receivable represents filed municipal license tax returns that were uncollected as of June 30, 2011 . 
Municipal license taxes collected prior to June 30, 2011 but pertaining to the next fiscal year are recorded 
as deferred revenues. 
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As of June 30, 2011 

The Municipality imposes a sales and usage tax within the territorial limits of the Municipality pursuant to 
the Internal Revenue Code of the Government of Puerto Rico. This is a self-assessed tax consisting of 
one and a half percent (1 .5%) on the sale price of a taxable item or on the purchase price of all usage, 
storage or consumption of a taxable item. It is collected monthly in a tax return that is due ten calendar 
days after the end of each month. 

A portion of the sales tax amounting 0.2% is restricted for the payment of long-term debt and is recorded 
in the debt service fund. The remaining portion of 1.3% is recorded in the general fund since is available 
for general operating purposes. 

Sale tax receivable represents sales tax levied that were collected subsequent to June 30, 2011, but 
pertaining to current year period. 

C. Construction excise tax 

The Municipality imposes and collects municipal construction excise taxes to most natural and legal 
persons and any governmental instrumentality that carry out activities related to construction, expansion, 
major repairs, relocations, alterations and other types of permanent improvements to residential, 
commercial and industrial buildings and structures within the territorial area of the Municipality. The tax is 
also applicable to infrastructure projects, the installation of machinery, equipment and fixtures, and other 
types of construction-related activities. 

The construction excise tax generally is a self-assessed tax imposed at a five percent (5%) over the cost of 
the project, net of certain exemptions such as the costs associated with the acquisition of land, project 
design and other engineering fees, licenses and permits, legal and accounting fees, and most mar1<eting 
and advertising costs. The tax is paid by the taxpayer at the beginning of the project. 

All single-family residential construction projects not related to housing development projects, 
condominiums, or any similar projects, are exempt from construction excise taxes for the first $100,000 of 
the project construction costs. In addition, all single-family residential improvement projects are exempt 
from construction excise taxes for the first $25,000 of the project improvement costs. All projects carried 
out on buildings and structures classified as historical treasures by the Puerto Rico Planning Board have 
an exemption of 3.75 percent (3.75%) in the tax rate applicable to construction excise taxes. 

Construction excise tax receivable represents taxes that were collected subsequent to June 30, 2011 , but 
pertaining to current year period. 
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The composition of intergovernmental receivables in the general fund at June 30, 2011 is: 

Other 
Genni OowrnnBltll 

Fund Fundl Tatll 
State and local inergovernmental entities: 
Puert> Rico Electrical Power Authority (PREPA) $ 3,328,814 $ $ 3,328,814 
Others 354,016 354,016 
Total stae and local intergovernmental entities 3,682,830 3,682,830 

Federal grants and contributions: 
Head Start 4,650,654 4,650,654 
Workforce Investment Act 2,470, 199 2,470, 199 
Community Development Block Grant 2,303,688 2,303,688 
Community Services Block Grant 2,217,416 2,217,416 
Federal Transit Administration 2,090,401 2,090,401 
HIV Emergency ReliefFormula Grant 1,217,684 1,217,684 
Supportive Housing Program 690,391 690,391 
Housing Opportunities br Persons with AIDS 534,507 534,507 
Others 4,579,239 4,579,239 
Total ~deral grants and contributions 20,754, 179 20,754, 179 

Total inergovemmental receivables $ 3,682,830 $ 20,754, 179 $ 24,437,009 

Amounts due from the PREPA represents the net receivable from the excess of contributions in lieu of 
taxes of $34,587,677 charged by the Municipality over the actual electric power consumption 
expense/expenditure of $31 ,258,863 charged by PREPA for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 . 

Intergovernmental receivables in other governmental funds represent principally uncollected 
reimbursements of expenditures incurred through the assignment of grants and contributions from the 
federal and local governments. 

E. Other 

Other accounts receivable as of June 30, 2011 , net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1 ,464,058 are 
as follows: 

Genlnll Gowmnaal 
Fund F&l'ldl Tatll 

Medical Plans $ 6,576,524 $ $ 6,576,524 

Other 525,021 649,834 1,174,855 

Total other receivables $ 7,101,545 $ 649,834 $ 7,751,379 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
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Other assets consist of a claim receivable related to the disputed allocation and liquidation of property tax 
collections among all municipalities of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2011. The amounts recorded as other assets represent the portion of the Municipality's property tax collections 
that remained unremitted as of June 30, 2011 . 

6. Loans Receivable, Net 

Loans at June 30, 2011 amounting to $10,886,938 consist of the outstanding balance of credit facilities granted 
to private small business net of allowance for loan losses of $345,571 . The majority of these loans are 
collateralized or guaranteed by either first, second and third mortgage notes on real estate and/or chattel 
mortgage over machinery and equipment. 

7. lnterfund Transactions 

lnterfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2011 are summarized as follows: 

General 
Other Governmental Funds 
Total 

1) Debt Se Nice Fund: 

$ 

$ 

Debt 
s.w:e 
Funds 
5,245,352 

5,245,352 

Payable Fdnd 
Othw 

.Gowrnmenlll 
Funds Total 

$ 55,539,520 $ 60,784,872 
791 ,778 791,778 

$ 56,331 ,298 $ 61,576,650 

Act. No. 64 of 1996, as amended, authorized municipalities to withdraw from the debt service fund 
the excess of cash arising from the ad valorem taxes over the actual debt service requirements of 
bonds. As of June 30, 2011 , there were approximately $5.2 million of such excess of cash recorded 
as due from other funds in the general fund . 

2) Other Governmental Funds: 

The Municipality handles all disbursements through the general fund bank accounts, except for 
certain disbursements of other governmental funds which are handled through GOB bank accounts. 
Accordingly, the outstanding balances between funds resulted mainly from the time lag between the 
dates that (1) interfund goods and service are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, and (2) 
payments between funds are made. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, Notes to Financial Statements 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO As of June 30, 2011 

8. Capital Assets 

Capital assets are primarily funded through the issuance of long-term bonds and notes. Capital assets activity 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 201 1 was as follows: 

iwn.a 
a.tee ... Blllla 

Gonmmnal AcMlel: .My1,2010 RIClaalllcltion ...... .1111130, 2011 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
Land $ 97,554,632 $ $ 3,149,342 $ $ 100,703,974 
Works of art 2,224,365 2,224,365 
Construction in progress 28,7691020 !27,889,362! 27,583,382 28,463,040 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 128,548,017 (27,889,362! 301732,724 131,391 ,379 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings and buildng rnprovements 417 ,793,268 12,735,940 2,611,733 433,140,941 
Site improvements 169,970,713 3,235,234 934,694 174,140,641 
Infrastructure 232,015,807 11 ,918,188 328,731 244,262,726 
Equipment and vehicles 79,409,827 5,229,930 (1,150,080) 83,489,677 
Intangible 3,825,426 3,825,426 

Total capital assets being depreciated 903,015,041 27,889,362 9,105,088 (1,150,080! 938,859,411 

Less accumulated depreciation for. 
Buildings and buildng inprovements (154,853,881) (16,959,798) (171,813,679) 
Site improvements (90,859,159) (8,913, 172) (99,772,331 ) 
Infrastructure (60,575,331) (9,083,735) (69,659,066) 
Equipment and vehicles (70,048,410) (1,676,582) 1,150,080 (70,574,912) 
Intangible !3,825,426! !3.825,426! 

Total accumulated depreciation !380,162,207l (36,633,287! 1,150,080 (415,645,414! 
Total capital assets beng depreciated, net 522,852,834 27,889,362 (27,528,199! 523,213,997 

Governmental acti'.1ties capital assets, net $ 651,400,851 $ $ 3,204,525 $ $ 654,605,376 

Rlllrlnwa 
Mia ... Blllllct 

Al:Mlel: .My1,291t Recl•1lc3ims ,..... .bll30,2011 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
Land $ $ $ 18,624,329 $ $ 18,624,329 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 18,624,329 18,624,329 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Bu~dings and buildi'lg mprovements 3614471611 3614471611 

Total capital assets being depreciated 36,447,611 36,447,611 

Less accumulated depreciation for. 
Buildings and buildi'lg mprovements !455,595! !455,595! 

Total accumulated depreciation !455,595! !455,595! 
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 35,992,016 35,992,016 

Business-type acti\1ties capital assets, net $ $ $ 54,616,345 $ $ 54,616,345 

.. 
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Municipality as follows: 

GMriamental activities: 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
CulbJre and recreation 
Health and welfare 
Urban development 
Economic development 
Education 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 

Businm-type actMties 
International Center 
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 

9. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2011 are summarized as follows: 

0th• 
Genni Gowmnntal 

Fund Funds 
Accoun5 payable $ 46, 180, 156 $ 22,584,898 
Accrued liabilities 1,364,728 894,515 
Total $ 47,544,884 $ 23,479,413 

10. Intergovernmental Payables 

Intergovernmental payables at June 30, 2011 are summarized as follows: 

Other 
Glnerll Govarnmlnlll 

Fund Fundl 
Puerto Rico Employees Retirement System $ 2,026,840 $ 
Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority 680,000 9,215 
Other 790,180 620,400 
Tola! $ 3,497,020 $ 629,615 

$ 

$ 

Amount 
$ 5,006,843 

1,214,679 
10,819,414 
7,635,452 
5,037,974 

291 ,879 
5,468,628 
1, 158,418 

$ 36,633,287 

Amount 
$ 455,595 
$ 455,595 

Total 
68,765,054 
2,259,243 

71 ,024,297 

Tolll 
$ 2,026,840 

689,215 
1,410,580 

$ 4,126,635 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
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11. Deferred Revenues 

12. 

A. Municipal License Tax 

The deferred revenues of approximately $96.5 million in the general fund at June 30, 2011 relate to 
municipal license tax collected in fiscal year 2011 that will be earned in fiscal year 2012. 

B. Federal Government 

The deferred revenues presented in other governmental funds represent the portion of federal grants 
received for which qualifying expenditures have not been incurred. Deferred revenues from the federal 
government are as follows: 

Program Description 
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
Child and Adult Care Food Program 
Department ofTreasury Equitable Sharing 
Department of Justice Equitable Sharing 
Others 
Total 

Long-Term Debt 
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 , was as follows: 

8orro1linp Pa,ments 
819nnl1g or or 
Bllanc:e Addllioftl Deductionl 

Bonds payable $ 410,636,000 $ 24,865,000 $ (41 ,363,000) 
Bond anticipation note 1,873,060 

Mortgage payable 4,176,905 (340,736) 

Notes payable 217,525,016 25,386,622 (14,055,436) 
Compensated absences 48,901 ,959 8,290,181 (4,640,895) 
Pension-related debt 47,091 ,179 21 ,823,243 (30,842,433) 
Claims and judgments 6,100,000 699,432 (699,432) 
Landfill obligation 18,000,000 (900,000) 

Other liabilities 14,321 ,943 (3,860,505) 
Total go-..emmental actii.1ties 

long-tenn liabilities $ 766,753,002 $ 82,937,538 $ (96,702,437) 

BorrVIUp ,.,.... 
Beglnllng or or 

ICIMtitl BUace Adclilionl Deduction• 
Re\enue bonds payable and 

total business-t)lle actii.1ties 

long-tenn debt $ $ 55,071 ,940 $ 

57 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Alll>Unt 
$ 1,177,310 

762,348 
638,569 
147,809 

2,392,694 
$ 5, 118,730 

Ending DueWMllia 
BUlc:e OneY• 
394,138,000 $ 39,106,000 

1,873,060 1,873,060 

3,836,169 370,854 

228,856,202 14,890,556 

52,551 ,245 4,500,000 

38,071 ,989 25,632,748 

6,100,000 1,000,000 

17,100,000 900,000 

10,461,438 900,000 

752,988,103 $ 89,173,218 

Ending DueWlthla 
M-=e OntYw 

55,071 ,940 $ 520,000 



MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

Notes to Financial Statements 
As of June 30, 2011 

Historically, the general fund has been used to liquidate long-term liabilities other than debt (i.e. compensated 
absences, obligations under capital leases, claims and judgments and other liabilities). 

A. Legal Debt Margin 

The Municipality is subject to a legal debt margin requirement, which is equal to 10% of the total 
assessment of property located within the Municipality plus the balance of the special ad valorem taxes in 
the debt service fund. In addition, before any new bonds are issued, the revenues of the debt service fund 
should be sufficient to cover the projected debt service requirement. Total property assessed value at June 
30, 2011 amounted to approximately $28. 7 billion. Long-term debt, except for the bonds payable, 
mortgage payable and certain notes payable, is paid with unrestricted funds. 

B. Bonds Payable 

The Municipality issues general obligation bonds mainly to provide funds for the acquisition and 
construction of major capital facilities. During fiscal year 2011 , the Municipality issued bonds for 
approximately $24.9 million. 

Bonds payable outstanding at June 30, 2011 are as follows: 

Des~on 
2011 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $24.9 million due in annual 
installments of $2,875,000 to $4,310,000, through July 1, 2017; with interest 
ranging from 6.5% to 7.5% 

2010 general obligation bonds for the third payment of the early retirement 
termination benefit with an original amount of $28.3 million due in annual 
installments of $415,000 to $2,365,000, through July 1, 2034; with interest 
ranging from 4.8% to 7.5% 

2010 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $11.2 million due in annual 
installments of $255,000 to $1 ,025,000, through July 1, 2029; with interest 
ranging from 4.8% to 7.5% 

2010 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $10.1 million due in annual 
installments of $725,000 to $1,340,000, through July 1, 2019; with interest 
ranging from 5.0% to 7.5% 

2010 general obligation bonds for the acquisition, construction and 
improvements of various capital assets with an original amount of $13.5 
million due in annual installments of $340,000 to $1,260,000, through July 1, 
2028; with interest ranging from 4.8% to 7.5% 

2009 general obligation bonds for the acquisition of various capital assets with 
an original amount of $7.0 million due in annual installments of $800,000 to 
$1,230,000, through July 1, 2015; with interest ranging from 4.75% to 7.5% 
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Outstanding 
Amount 

$21 ,990,000 

27,400,000 

10,675,000 

8,550,000 

12,800,000 

4,430,000 
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Description 
2009 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $16.9 million due in annual 
installments of $430,000 to $1 ,585,000, through July 1, 2027; with interest 
ranging from 4.75% to 7.5% 

2008 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $4.7 million due in annual 
installments of $175,000 to $500,000, through July 1, 2023; with interest 
ranging from 2.43% to 7.5% 

2008 general obligation bonds for the second payment of the early retirement 
termination benefit with an original amount of $20.0 million due in annual 
installments of $305,000 to $1,635,000, through July 1, 2032; with interest 
ranging from 3.93% to 7.25% 

2008 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $4.7 million due in annual 
installments of $70,000 to $390,000, through July 1, 2032; with interest 
ranging from 3.93% to 7.25% 

2008 general obligation bonds for the acquisition of various capital assets with 
an original amount of $10.9 million due in annual installments of $1 ,245,000 to 
$1,900,000, through July 1, 2014; with interest ranging from 3.93% to 7.25% 

2007 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $13.8 million due in annual 
installments of $320,000 to $1,260,000, through July 1, 2026; with interest 
ranging from 6.50% to 7.50% 

2007 general obligation bonds for the first payment of the early retirement 
termination benefit with an original amount of $22.6 million due in annual 
installments of $357,000 to $1 ,812,000, through July 1, 2031 ; with interest 
ranging from 6.60% to 7.00% 

2005 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $18.6 million due in annual 
installments of $480,000 to $1 ,585,000, through July 1, 2025; with interest 
ranging from 4.23% to 5.31% 

2005 general obligation bonds for the acquisition of various capital assets with 
an original amount of $6.0 million due in annual installments of $720,000 to 
$1,020,000, through July 1, 2012; with interest ranging from 4.23% to 4.73% 

2004 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $18.9 million due in annual 
installments of $570,000 to $1,450,000, through July 1, 2024; with interest 
ranging from 4.17% to 5.28% 
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Outstanding 
Amount 

15,530,000 

4,145,000 

18,640,000 

4,405,000 

5,310,000 

11,945,000 

20,528,000 

15,235,000 

1,020,000 

14,285,000 
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~ 
2004 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $10.1 million due in annual 
installments of $500,000 to $870,000, through July 1, 2019; with interest 
ranging from 3.28% to 4.80% 

2004 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $22.2 million due in annual 
installments of $815,000 to $1 ,130,000, through July 1, 2027; with interest 
ranging from 2.76% to 5.31% 

2003 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $12.8 million due in annual 
installments of $415,000 to $620,000, through July 1, 2028; with interest 
ranging from 1.61% to 4.00% 

2001 serial bonds for the construction and improvements of various capital 
assets with an original amount of $55.6 million due in annual installments of 
$760,000 to $4,825,000, through July 1, 2026; with interest ranging from 
2.70% to 5.60% 

2001 serial bonds for the acquisition of various capital assets with an original 
amount of $10.2 million due in annual installments of $475,000 to $1 , 195,000, 
through July 1, 2013; with interest ranging from 2. 70% to 6.13% 

2000 serial bonds for the construction and improvements of various capital 
assets with an original amount of $25.4 million due in annual installments of 
$970,000 to $2,680,000, through July 1, 2015; with interest ranging from 
2.70% to 7.81% 

1999 general obligations bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $65.0 million due in annual 
installments of $1 ,740,000 to $5,885,000, through July 1, 2018; with interest 
ranging from 4.87% to 6.46% 

1999 serial bonds for the construction and improvements of various capital 
assets with an original amount of $70.7 million due in annual installments of 
$2,810,000 to $7,255,000, through July 1, 2013; with interest rang ing from 
4.87% to 6.11% 

1999 general obligations bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $67.3 million due in annual 
installments of $1,980,000 to $6,260,000, through July 1, 2016; with interest 
ranging from 4.87% to 6.34% 

1998 serial bonds for the construction and improvements of various capital 
assets with an original amount of $51.4 million due in annual installments of 
$1 ,190,000 to $4,695,000, through July 1, 2017; with interest ranging from 
4.87% to 6.71% 
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OUtstanding 
___ .;_;;Arnau= nt 

6,090,000 

16,220,000 

9,275,000 

44,560,000 

2,300,000 

9,635,000 

33,920,000 

14,035,000 

27,445,000 

23,685,000 
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. Description 

1998 general obligations bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $18.3 million due in annual 
installments of $350,000 to $1 ,605,000, through July 1, 2019; with interest 
ranging from 4.87% to 6.71 % 

Total 

10,085,000 

$394,138,000 

These bonds are payable from the special ad valorem property tax of three and a half percent (3.50%), 
which is restricted for debt service and retained by GOB for such purposes. 

Variable interest rates on serial bonds are reviewed periodically by GOB and are based on the fluctuation of 
GOB's weighted average rate for its commercial paper program. Under this program, GOB issues 
commercial paper: (1) in the taxable and tax-exempt markets of the United States of America, (2) in the 
Eurodollar market, and (3) to corporations having tax exemptions under the Puerto Rico Industrial Incentives 
Acts and, which qualify for benefits provided by the former Section 936 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. 

According to sections 103 and 148 to 150 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code and sections 1.148 to 1.150 of 
the U.S. Treasury Regulation, the Municipality's tax-exempt bonds are subject to the arbitrage rebate 
requirements. At June 30, 2010, the Municipality had no federal arbitrage liability on bonds since interest 
income earned from the investment of unspent bond proceeds were made in bank deposits that generate 
yields lower than the rates applicable to the debt service payments. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds payable are as follows: 

Y•endlng 
June30, 

2012 $ 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

2017-2021 
2022-2026 
2027-2031 
2032-2034 

Total $ 

C. Revenue Bonds Payable - Proprietary Fund 

Principal 
39, 106,000 
40,706,000 
34,508,000 
34,843,000 
33,036,000 
92,198,000 
77,425,000 
33,686,000 
8,630,000 

394, 138,000 

lntentst 
$ 23,918,926 

22,271,743 
19,931,958 
17,870,333 
15,354,834 
54,276,555 
30, 157,379 
9,764,662 
1,686,217 

$ 195,232,607 

On December 15, 2010, the Municipality issued revenue bonds amounting to $55,071 ,940 for the 
acquisition of an income-producing real estate property commonly known as International Center. The 
bonds are payable in twenty five (25) annual installments commencing on July 1, 2012 through July 1, 2036. 
The Municipality shall pay interests on the bonds at a rate per annum equal to 3.5 percentage points over 
the London Interbank Offered Rate (4.23% at June 30, 2011). 
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Pursuant to the provisions of the revenue bond indentures, the Municipality has pledged and assigned its 
right, title and interest in all future revenues to be produced in the operation and maintenance of the 
acquired property. In the event that such revenues are not sufficient to make all debt service payments of 
principal, interests and premium, if any, on the bonds, the Municipality will assign the necessary portion of 
its general revenues to cover the debt service payments due and payable. In addition, the acquired 
property is subject to a mortgage constituted as security for the obligations evidenced by the bonds issued. 

The revenue bonds are subject to several positive and negative covenants that the Municipality must 
comply with at all times. The management of the Municipality understands that all debt covenants have 
been complied with, in all material respects, at June 30, 2011 . 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds payable are as follows: 

Year ending 
June38, 

--~ 

D. Bond Anticipation Notes 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

2017-2021 
2022-2026 
2027-2031 
2032-2036 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Principal 
520,000 
570,000 
610,000 
660,000 
700,000 

4,420,000 
6,330,000 
9,100,000 

32,161 ,940 
55,071 ,940 

Interest 
$ 2,329,268 

2,307,274 
2,283,166 
2,257,366 
2,229,451 

10,652,406 
9,568,385 
8,011,506 
5,777,484 

$45,416,306 

On January 31 , 2011, the Municipality issued bond anticipation notes (BANS) with an approved credit facility 
ceiling of $100 million of which $1.9 million have been borrowed at June 30, 2011 . The purpose of the bond 
anticipation notes is to finance the acquisition, construction and improvement of major capital assets. The 
BANS accrue interests at a rate per annum equal to 1.5 percentage points over the prime rate with a floor of 
6.0 percent. 

The Municipality has the intention and capacity to payoff the BANS with a future long-term bond issuance to 
be made on or before January 31 , 2016, the agreed maturity date of the BANS. Accordingly, the outstanding 
balance of these obligations has been recorded in the accompanying statement of net assets. 

E. Mortgage Payable 

The mortgage loan payable wtth an original amount of $7 .0 million to the federal government bears interest 
at 8.5% and is secured by the Federal Housing Administration and by a first mortgage on rental property. 
Principal and interest are payable from the proceeds of the rent collected from the tenants. The Federal 
government provides housing assistance payments to qualified tenants to subsidize most of the monthly 
rent. This housing project is administered by a private entity. 
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F. 

Aggregate annual maturities of the mortgage payable are as follows: 

Ymending 
June3D, lntlnlt 

2012 370,854 $ 311,847 
2013 403,634 279,067 
2014 439,312 243,390 
2015 478,143 204,560 
2016 520,403 162,296 

2017-2019 1,623,823 196,701 
Tolal $ 3,836,169 $ 1,397,861 

Notes Payable 

During September 2002, the Municipality entered into a repayment agreement with the GOB and CRIM to 
repay a debt of $27.4 million. The principal and interest payments are due on July 1 of each year through 
July 1, 2032. The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2011 approximates $23.6 million. The repayment 
agreement is payable in monthly installments of $168,685 from unrestricted property tax revenues and 
bears interest at a fixed interest rate of 6.19%. 

During November 2004, the Municipality issued a special obligation refunding note with a commercial bank 
for approximately $40 million to refinance certain notes payable to GOB. The note bears interest at 90-day 
London Interbank Offering Rate ("LIBOR") plus 1.25% (3.73% at June 30, 2011) and is payable semi­
annually ranging from $.06 to $2.9 million, and matures at various dates through July 1, 2029. The 
outstanding balance as of June 30, 2011 approximates $33.9 million. This note will be repaid from 
unrestricted property tax revenues. 

During May 2005, the Municipality issued a note payable to GOB for approximately $17.3 million. The note 
is payable in annual installments ranging from $1.4 to $2.1 million through July 2014 and bears interest at 
1.25% over 90-day LIBOR with a minimum of 5% and maximum of 12% (3.73% at June 30, 2011). The 
outstanding balance as of June 30, 2011 approximates $6.1 million. The proceeds of the note were used 
principally to pay debt incurred in prior years. This note will be repaid from unrestricted property tax 
revenues. 

During June 2006, the Municipality issued a note payable to GOB for $31.4 million. The note is payable in 
annual installments through July 2030 ranging from $0.5 to $2.4 million and will bear interest at 90-day 
LIBOR plus 1.25 percent (3.73% at June 30, 2011 ). The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2011 
approximates $27.6 million. The proceeds of the note were used principally to pay debt incurred in prior 
years. This note will be repaid from unrestricted property tax revenues. 

During January 2008, the Municipality issued a special obligation note (SON-A) for $36.1 million. The 
SON-A is payable in annual installments through July 2014 ranging from $5.1 to $7.0 million and will bear 
interest at 90-day LIBOR plus 1.25 percent with a minimum of 5% and maximum of 12% (3.73% at June 
30, 2011). The proceeds of the SON-A were used principally to infrastructure capital outlays. The 
outstanding balance as of June 30, 2011 approximates $19.7 million. The SON-A will be repaid through 
sales tax revenues pledge and account for in the Municipality Redemption Fund. 

During January 2008, the Municipality issued a special obligation note (SON-B) for $37 .1 million. The 
SON-B is payable in annual installments through July 2032 ranging from $.06 to $3.1 million and will bear 
interest at 90-day LIBOR plus 1.25 percent with a minimum of 5% and maximum of 12% (3.73% at June 
30, 2011 ). The proceeds of the SON-B were used principally for the construction of various capital facilities 
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and other capital assets. The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2011 approximates $35.0 million. The 
SON-B will be repaid through sales tax revenues pledge and account for in the Municipality Redemption 
Fund. 

In addition, the Municipality entered into a loan agreement with the US Department of Housing and Urban 
Development under a Variable Rate Note Guarantee pursuant to Section 108 of the Housing and 
Community Development Act of 197 4, as amended. The note was issued to finance the future acquisition 
and construction of major capital facilities, and allows borrowings up to a maximum of $72,515,000. The 
borrowings have an outstanding balance of approximately $57.5 million and are payable in annual 
installments ranging from $2.7 to $6.3 million, mature at various dates through July 2022 and bear interest 
at 0.2% over 90-day LIBOR (0.45% at June 30, 2011). This loan agreement will be repaid from future 
grant awards received from the Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) program. 

During September 2010, the Municipality entered into a line of credit agreement with GDB for $25.4 million. 
The note was issued to finance the fourth payment of the early retirement termination benefit plan and 
other related debts up to the limit of the line of credit agreement. The borrowings mature on July 2015 and 
bears interest payable in annual installments at prime variable plus 1.50 percent (1 .75% at June 30, 2011 ). 
The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2011 approximates $25.4 million. This note will be repaid through 
sales tax revenues pledge and account for in the Municipality Redemption Fund. 

The maturities of notes payable are as follows: 

Year ending 
June30, 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

2017-2021 
2022-2026 
2027-2031 

G. Compensated Absences 

2032 
Total 

Principal 
$ 14,890,556 

15,811 ,355 
16,725,174 
33,467,993 
8,561 ,330 

51,082,338 
46,858,920 
36,864,517 
4,594,019 

$ 228,856,202 

lnta'8lt 
$ 12,364, 107 

12,616,970 
11,639,123 
9,836,231 
8,625,964 

35, 197,766 
20,097,070 
7,882,719 

283,056 
$ 118,543,006 

The government-wide statement of net assets includes approximately $22.4 million, $20.5 million and $9.7 
million of accrued vacation benefits, accrued sick leave benefits and payroll related benefits, respectively, 
representing the Municipality's commitment to fund such costs from future operations. 

H. Pension-Related Debt 

The amount reported as pension-related debt includes various obligations of the Municipality with the 
Employees Retirement System of the Government of Puerto Rico and Its Instrumentalities for the 
repayment of liabilities that resulted from the enactment of various special laws that, substance over form, 
converted the Municipality's actuarial accrued liability into a fixed contractual liability to the Cost-Sharing 
Multi-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan that the Municipality's employees participate and an early 
retirement plan as described in Notes 13 and 14, respectively. 
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On September 1, 2010, the Municipality entered into a payment plan of $21 .8 million with the Employees 
Retirement System of the Government of Puerto Rico and Its Instrumentalities for the repayment of a 
pension-related debt that resulted from the enactment of additional special laws during the years 2006 
through 2010. 

The new pension-related debt of $21 .8 million is payable with a first installment payment of $2.5 million 
commencing on September 10, 2010 followed by fifty-nine monthly installments of $327,349, including 
interests at an imputed rate of 5% per annum. 

The pension-related debt has been reported in the accompanying government-wide statement of net 
assets since it is considered an accounting liability resulting from the conversion of an actuarial liability (off 
balance sheet obligation) into a liability that must be reported in the accompanying financial statements. 

The maturities of the pension-related debt are as follows: 

I. Landfill Obligation 

Y•endlng 
June 3D, ----~ 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

Total 

Outstanding 
Amount 

$ 25,632,748 

3,928,188 

3,928,188 

3,928,188 

654,677 

$ 38,071,989 

State and federal laws and regulations require the Municipality to place a final cover on the Municipality's 
landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perfonn certain maintenance and monitoring functions at 
the site for 30 years after closure. In December 2000, the Municipality's landfill facilities were closed. 
Based on current costs, the preliminary annual estimate of postclosure costs has been assessed to be 
approximately $900,000 for a period of approximately 19 years. The balance of postclosure costs of $1 7.1 
million is reported in the statement of net assets. Actual costs may be different due to inflation, changes in 
technology, or changes in laws and regulations. 

J. Other Liabilities 

Other liabilities represent $0.9 million in connection with a project to establish a land infonnation 
management system and $9.6 million in other miscellaneous liabilities. 

13. Pension Plans 

A. Cost-Sharing Multi-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
The Municipality's employees participate in the Employees' Retirement System of the Government of Puerto 
Rico and its Instrumentalities (ERS), a cost-sharing multi-employer (as related to the Municipality's reporting 
entity) defined benefit pension plan established by the Commonwealth and administered by the Retirement 
Systems Administration of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Substantially all full-time employees of the 
Commonwealth and substantially all municipalities are covered by ERS under the tenns of Public Act No. 
447 of May 15, 1951, as amended (Act No. 447). All regular and temporary employees of the Municipality 
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become plan members of ERS at the date of employment, while it is optional for officers appointed. ERS 
members, other than those joining rt after March 31 , 1990, are eligible for the benefits described below: 

Retirement Annuity 
ERS members are eligible for a retirement annuity upon reaching the following age: 

Policemen and firemen: 
50 with 25 years of credited service 
58 with 10 years of credited service 

Other employees: 
55 with 25 years of credited service 
58 with 10 years of credited service 

ERS members are eligible for monthly benefit payments determined by the application of the stipulated 
benefit ratios to the member's average compensation. Average compensation is computed based on the 
highest 36 months of compensation recognized by ERS. The annuity, for which a member is eligible, is 
limited to a minimum of $300 per month and a maximum of 75 percent of the average compensation. 

Merit Annuity 
ERS members are eligible for merit annuity with a minimum of 30 years or more of credited service. The 
annuity for which the plan member is eligible is limited to a minimum of 65 percent and a maximum of 75 
percent of the average compensation. 

Deferred Retirement Annuity 
A participating employee who ceases to be an employee of the Municipality after having accumulated a 
minimum of ten years of credited service qualifies for retirement benefits provided his/her contributions are 
left in ERS until reaching 58 years of age. 

Coordinated Plan 
On the coordinated plan, by the time the employee reaches 65 years old and begins to receive social 
security benefits, the pension benefits are reduced by the following: 

(a) $165 per month, if retired with 55 years of age and 30 years of credited service. 
(b) $110 per month, if retired with less than 55 years of age and 30 years of credited service. 
(c) All other between $82 and $100 per month. 
(d) Disability annuities under the coordinated plan are also adjusted at age 65 and in some cases can 

be reduced over $165 per month. 

Non-Coordinated Plan 
On the non-coordinated plan the participating employee does not have any change on the pension benefits 
upon receiving social security benefits. 

Reversionary Annuity 
An ERS member, upon retirement, could elect to receive a reduced retirement annuity giving one or more 
benefit payments to his/her dependents. The life annuity payments would start after the death of the retiree 
for an amount not less than $240 per year or greater than the annuity payments being received by the 
retiree. 

Occupational Disability Annuity 
A participating employee, who as a direct result of the performance of his/her occupation is totally and 
permanently disabled is eligible for a disability annuity of 50 percent of the compensation received at the 
time of disability. 
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A participating employee, totally and pennanently disabled for causes not related to his/her occupation and 
with no less than 10 years of credited service, is eligible for an annuity of 1.50 percent of the average 
compensation of the first 20 years of credited services, increased by 2 percent for every additional year of 
credited service in excess of 20 years. 

Death Benefits 
Occupational: 
(a) Surviving spouse - annuity equal to 50 percent of the participating employee's salary at the date 

of the death. 

(b) Children - $10 per month for each child, minor or student, up to a maximum benefit per family of 
$100. 

Non-occupational: 

Beneficiary - the contributions and interest accumulated as of the date of the death plus an amount 
equal to the annual compensation at the time of the death. 

Refunds 
A participating employee who ceases his/her employment with the Municipality without the right to a 
retirement annuity has the right to a refund of the contributions to ERS plus any interest earned thereon. 

B. Hybrid Defined Contribution Pension Plan 
On September 24, 1999, Public Act No. 305 was enacted to establish a defined contribution plan, 
known as System 2000, to cover employees joining ERS on or after January 1, 2000. 

Employees that participated in the defined benefit plan as of December 31, 1999, had the opportunity to 
elect to either stay in the defined benefit plan or transfer to System 2000. Employees that joined the 
Municipality on or after January 1, 2000, were only allowed to become members of System 2000. 

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan administered by the Retirement Systems 
Administration of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, also known as a cash balance plan. Under this 
new plan, there is a pool of plan assets, which is invested by the System, together with those of the 
cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan. Neither the Commonwealth nor the Municipality 
guarantee benefits at retirement age. The annuity is based on a fonnula which assumes that each 
fiscal year the employee's contribution (with a minimum of 8.28 percent of the employee's salary up to a 
maximum of 10 percent) is invested as instructed by the employee in an account which either: (1) earns 
a fixed rate based on the two-year Constant Maturity Treasury Notes, (2) earns a rate equal to 75 
percent of the return of the ERS' investment portfolio (net of management fees), or (3) earns a 
combination of both alternatives. Participants receive periodic account statements similar to those of 
defined contribution plans showing their accrued balances. Disability benefits are not granted under 
System 2000, rather are provided to those participants that voluntarily elect to participate in a private 
insurance long-tenn disability program. The employers' contributions (9.28 percent of the employee's 
salary) with respect to employees under System 2000 will continue and will be used to fund the cost­
sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan. 

System 2000 reduced the retirement age from 65 years to 60 for those employees who joined the 
current plan on or after January 1, 2000. 
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The authority under which obligations to contribute to ERS and System 2000 by the plans' members, 
employers and other contributing entities (i.e., state or municipal contributions) are established or may be 
amended by law by the House of Representatives, the Senate and the Governor of the Commonwealth of 
Puerto Rico. 

The contribution requirement to ERS is established by law and is not actuarially determined. These 
contributions are as follows: 

Municipality and other employers 
Employees: 

Coordination plan: 

Supplementation plan: 

9.28 percent of applicable payroll 

5.78 percent of gross salary up to 
$6,600 per year, plus 8.28 percent 
gross salary in excess of $6,600. 
8.28 percent of gross salary. This is 
the only choice available to 
policemen, firemen and mayors 

The contribution requirement to System 2000 is also established by law and is not actuarially determined. 
These contributions are as follows: 

Municipality and other employers 
Employees: 

9.28 percent of applicable payroll 
5.78 percent of gross salary up to 
$6,600 per year, plus 8.28 percent of 
gross salary in excess of $6,600. 

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009, 2010 and 2011 , the Municipality and the participating 
employees contributed at least 100 percent of the required contributions to ERS and System 2000. The 
combined actual contributions made by the Municipality and its participating employees to ERS and System 
2000 amounted to $13.8 million, $14.3 million and $13.8 million for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 , 
2010 and 2009 respectively. 

Historically, the state government of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico has reported ERS and System 2000 
in its basic financial statements as pension trust funds. Accordingly, the Commonwealth is currently 
assuming any actuarial deficiency that may exist or arise related to the Municipality's participating 
employees because ERS does not allocate to the Municipality any actuarial deficiencies pertaining to 
participating municipal employees. The Municipality is only required by law to make statutory contributions 
at the rates detailed below. 
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The Municipality's recommended contribution, pension cost and decrease in net pension liability for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 , are as follows: 

~~~~~~~~~~ 

Amount 
~~~~~~~~~ 

Annual required contribution and pension cost 

Employer contributions made 

Net change in net pension liability 

Pension-related debt beginning of year 

Pension-related debt end of year 

$ 11,886, 789 

$ 

(13,809,016) 

( 1,922,227) 

1,922,227 

Readers can obtain information of the audited basic financial statements of ERS and System 2000 from the 
Retirement Systems Administration of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the entity that administers ERS 
and System 2000) at PO Box 42003, Minillas Station, Santurce, Puerto Rico 00940-2003. 

14. Early Retirement Plan 

In addition to the pension benefrts described above, the Municipality offered a voluntary early retirement 
program (the Program) in accordance to Municipal Resolution No. 41 , Series 2006-2007. This Program was 
offered to employees who currently participate in the System and had completed 25 years of creditable 
service. All eligible employees must have notified the Municipality on or before November 21 , 2006 of their 
intention to retire on December 31 , 2006. The retirees will receive the full benefit of 75% of their average 
salary, as described in Note 12 of these financial statements. Nine hundred fifty-four (954) employees elected 
to participate in the Program. 

The cost of the Program was approximately $117.9 million which is the difference between the present value 
of the accelerated benefits of the Program and the present value of the benefits under the terms of Act 
No. 447 of 1951. Under the accrual basis of accounting, a liability and expense of $117.9 million was 
recognized on the statement of net assets and statement of activities, respectively. Under the modified 
accrual basis of accounting, the expenditure will be recognized, in the fund statements, when the liability is 
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. 

Also, the Municipality entered into an agreement with the System to determine the Municipality's funding 
requirements for the cost of the Program. The Municipality's annual funding requirements are: 

. Y•andlng 
June30, 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 

Annual 
Pension Cost 
$ 26,984,049 

17,598,293 

28,157,269 
23,464,391 
21,704,560 

$117,908,562 

Percentage Actual 
Requlrld Perllion 

Conbibution Cantrtbutlon 
22.5% $ 26,984,049 $ 
15.0% 17,598,293 
0.0% 
24.0% 28,157,269 
20.0% 23,464,391 
18.5% 21 ,704,560 
100.0% $ 96,204,002 $ 21 ,704,560 

The Municipality has made its required contribution to the Program for the year ended June 30, 2011 . 
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15. Fund Balance {Deficit} and Prior-Period Adjustments 

As of June 30 2011, fund balance (deficit) is comprised of the following: 

Other 
o.n..I Debt SerYlc:e Gov8mlMllbll 

FWHI Fund Funds Tobll 

Nonspendable: 
Inventories and other assets $ 15,618,837 $ $ 24,394 $ 15,643,231 

Loans receivable 10,886,938 10,886,938 

Restricted for: 
General government 1,305,524 1,305,524 

Public safety 3,297,457 464,861 3,762,318 
Culture, recreation and education 20,371 20,371 

Health and welfare 49,987 49,987 
Urban development 3,012,261 3,012,261 
Economic development 7,263,336 7,263,336 

Debt service 38,273,407 38,273,407 

Capital projects 6,498,784 6,498,784 

Committed: 
General government 1,251 1,251 

Public safety 163,890 2,422 166,312 

Health and welfare 32,564 165,642 198,206 

Capital projects 48,886 64,032,736 64,081 ,622 

Unassigned (35,345,241) (9,092,425) (44,437,666) 
Total fund balances (deficit) $ (16,183,607) $ 38,273,407 $ 84,636,082 $ 106,725,882 

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions (GASB 54), the Municipality undertook a comprehensive evaluation of its fund structure according to 
the modifications made by such pronouncement to the definitions of special revenue funds and the types of 
activities the Municipality may choose to report in those funds. As a result of such evaluation, on July 1, 2010 
the Municipality recorded a prior-period adjustment to account for various funds previously recorded within the 
general fund that were reclassified as non-major special revenue funds. The restated beginning fund balances 
of the reclassified funds are composed of the following: 

Fund balances (deficit) at beginning 
of fiscal year, as previously reported 

Add/(deduct) : 
GASB 54 fund reclassifications recorded as 

prior-period adjustments 
Other miscellaneous adjustments 

Fund balances (deficit) at beginning 
of fiscal year, as restated 
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$ (18,438,846) $ 

1,593,643 

$ (16,845,203) $ 

93,132,676 

(1,593,643) 
16,736 

91 ,555,769 
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Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt is comprised of the following: 

Capital assets, net of acrumula~d depreciation 
Ou1standing balance on capital related debt 
Unexpended capital debt proceeds 

Reclassification b unrestricted net asse1s 
Total invesEd in capital asse1s, net of related debt 

17. Risk Management 

GcMrnnnbil 
ActMtill 

$ 654,605,376 $ 
( 480,022,633) 

98,999,940 

$ 273,582,683 $ 

Bulln111 
1jpe 

Activltill 
54,616,345 $ 709,221 ,721 

(55,071,940) (535,094,573) 
98,999,940 

455,595 455,595 
$ 273,582,683 

The Risk Management Division of the Municipality is responsible of assuring that the Municipality's property is 
properly insured. Annually, the Risk Management Division compiles the information of all property owned and 
its respective market value. After evaluating this information, the Risk Management Division submits the data 
regarding the Municipality's properties to the Area of Public Insurance at the Department of the Treasury of the 
Government of Puerto Rico who is responsible for purchasing all property and casualty insurance policies of all 
municipalities. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

The Municipality maintains a claims-made policy since October 15, 1990 for the purpose of providing 
professional and patient care liability insurance with liability limits of $300,000 for each medical incident and $2 
million for aggregate incidents. The Municipality also obtained tail insurance coverage for incidents incurred 
but not reported prior to October 14, 1990. 

18. Commitments 

A. Operating Leases 

The Municipality leases real property, buildings, vehicles and equipment under various operating lease 
agreements, which generally have terms of one year or less and are automatically renewed for the same 
terms. Rental expenditures recorded in the general fund and in other governmental funds for the year 
ended June 30, 2011, amounted to approximately $7.1 million and $1 .9 million, respectively. Management 
believes that the summary of the future minimum rental commitments under noncancelable real property 
and equipment lease with terms exceeding one year is not material to the basic financial statements taken 
as a whole. 

B. Construction 

The Municipality had commitments at June 30, 2011 of approximately $70.0 million for the construction, 
improvements, or renovation of several capital facilities and the capital assets. 

C. Other commitments 

At June 30, 2011, the general fund had commitments of approximately $19.7 million for executory 
purchases orders or contracts that will be honored during the subsequent year. In addition, the nonmajor 
health & human service funds and miscellaneous special revenue funds had a deficit of $3. 7 million and 
$5.1 million, respectively which will be covered with future budgetary appropriations of the general fund, if 
necessary. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
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The Municipality is a defendant in various legal proceedings pertaining to matters incidental to the 
performance of routine governmental operations (including medical malpractice claims to the Municipality's 
Department of Health). Under Public Act No. 104 of June 25, 1955, as amended, persons are authorized 
to sue the Municipality only for causes of actions set forth in said Act to a maximum amount of $75,000 or 
$150,000 if it involves actions for damages to more than one person or where a single injured party is 
entitled to several causes of action. Under certain circumstances, as provided in Public Act No. 9 of 
November 26, 1975, as amended, the Municipality may provide its officers and employees with legal 
representation as well as assume the payment of any judgment that may be entered against them. There is 
no limitation on the payment of such judgments. 

With respect to pending and threatened litigation, the Municipality has reported liabilities of approximately 
$6.1 million at June 30, 2011 , for possible anticipated unfavorable judgments. These amounts were 
included in the financial statements and represent the amounts estimated as probable liabilities, which may 
require future available financial resources for its payment. Management believes that any unfavorable 
outcome in relation to pending or threatened litigation would not be significant, if any. 

The changes in the reserve for claim and judgments for the last two fiscal years are as follows: 

2011 2110 
Balance as of July 1 $ 6,100,000 $ 5,500,000 
Add: Provision for claims and judgmenls 699,432 1,611,863 
Less: Paymenls of claims and judgmenls (699,432) (1 ,011 ,863) 
Balance as of June 30 $ 6,1 00,000 $ 6,100,000 

It is management's opinion, based on the advice of legal counsel, that the potential claims against the 
Municipality not covered by insurance will not materially affect the financial position, results of operations 
and cash flows condition of the Municipality. 

The Municipality participates in a number of federal financial assistance programs funded by the Federal 
Government. Expenditures financed by these programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by 
the appropriate grantor. The "Reports on Compliance and Internal Control in Accordance with Government 
Audffing Standards and the Requirements of OMB Circular A-133" for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 , 
disclosed several material instances of noncompliance with applicable laws and regulations and with 
internal accounting and administrative controls. If expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with 
grant programs regulations, the Municipality may be required to reimburse the grantor. Management 
believes that the Municipality will be able to comply with the terms of corrective action plans that may be 
requested by the federal grantors. 

B. Gains 

The Municipality is a plaintiff in a number of lawsuits arising principally from claims against the Government 
of Puerto Rico for alleged, among others, non compliance with certain government-mandated transactions 
and other final settlements. Also, the Municipality is a plaintiff on several lawsuits from claims against 
taxpayers for alleged differences on computation of the municipal license tax and construction excise tax. 

With respect to pending and threatened litigation, the Municipality has not reported any receivables at June 
30, 2011, for anticipated favorable judgments of approximately $60.0 million. Although this amount was 
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not included in the financial statements, the amount estimated as a probable receivable would represent 
future available financial resources for expenditures. 

It is management's opinion, based on the advice of legal counsel, that the potential claims against the 
Government of Puerto Rico and certain taxpayers will materially improve the financial condition of the 
Municipality. 

20. Subsequent Events 

On December 12, 2011 , the Municipality's Legislature approved the issuance of revenue anticipation notes 
amounting to $57 million to cover the payment of various operating expenses charged to the general fund's 
budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012. These notes are payable with financial resources arising 
from municipal license tax and sales taxes collections to be made during the fiscal year 2011-2012. The 
notes shall accrue interests at a rate per annum equal to 2.5 percentage points over the 90-day London 
Interbank-Offered Rate (LIBOR). 

On February 21 , 2012, the Municipality's Legislature approved the issuance of general obligation bonds 
amounting to $25.7 million to cover the last installment of the Municipality's voluntary early retirement 
program in accordance to Municipal Resolution No. 41 , Series 2006-2007 and other costs associated with 
certain special laws related to the retirement systems sponsored by the Municipality. These bonds are 
payable with financial resources arising from future property tax collections (the Additional Special 
Contribution) levied by law for these purposes. The bonds shall accrue interests at a rate per annum equal 
to 2.5 percentage points over the London Interbank-Offered Rate (LIBOR). 

DDDDDD 
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE- GENERAL FUND 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

REVENUES: 

Property taxes $ 154,202,807 $ 154,157,738 $ 161 ,024,007 $ 6,866,269 

Municipal license tax 152,500,000 152,500,000 153,974,460 1,474,460 

Sales tax 51 ,000,000 51 ,000,000 48,713,261 (2,286,739) 

Construction and other local taxes 22,949,000 22,949,000 21 ,985,853 (963,147) 

Licenses and perm its 578,000 578,000 2,044,147 1,466,147 

Charges for ser\ices 61 ,772,265 61,772,265 57,218,872 (4,553,393) 

Fines and forfeitures 5,200,000 5,200,000 6,901, 109 1,701 ,109 

Interest 6,500,000 6,500,000 1,867,437 (4,632,563) 

lntergowrnmental - local 34,463,863 34,463,863 41 ,209,528 6,745,665 

Other 6,174,840 6,174,840 25,386,622 19,211,782 

Total rewnues 495,340,775 495,295,706 520,325,296 25,029,590 

EXPENDITURES: 

Current 

General gowmment 124,370,975 122,466,353 144,523,971 (22,057,618) 

Public safety 58,719,532 58,348,798 59,818,614 (1,469,816) 

Public works 71,416,468 71,873,465 68,703,125 3,170,340 

Culture and recreation 15,191,900 15,611 ,218 14,865,353 745,865 

Health and welfare 204,462,200 204,847,120 201 ,675,783 3,171,337 

Urban dewlopment 4,999,200 5,003,533 4,739,754 263,779 

Economic dei,elopment 8,987,200 10,091 ,290 10,066,475 24,815 

Education 7,193,300 7,053,929 6,706,353 347,576 

Total expenditures 495,340,775 495,295,706 511 ,099,428 (15,803,722) 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ $ $ 9,225,868 $ 9,225,868 

Explanation of Differences: 

Sources/inflows of resources: 

ktual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation" from the budgetarycomparison schedule $ 520,325,296 

Differences - budget to USG.APP: 
The proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt are budgetary resources but are regarded as 

Other Financing Sources for financial reporting purposes (25,386,622) 

Total rei,enues as reported on the statement of rei,enues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances (deficit) $ 494,938,674 

Uses/outflows of resources: 
ktual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations· from the budgetary comparison schedule $ 51 1,099,428 

Differences - budget to USGAAP: 
Prior ~ar encumbrances recorded as current ~ar expenditures for USGAAP basis 19,692,347 

Special general fund expenditure 8,564,272 

Current ~ar encumbrances recorded as expenditures for budgetary purposes (19,692,347) 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of rei,enues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances (deficit) $ 519,663,700 

The accompan~ng notes to budgetary comparison schedule are an integral part of this schedule. 
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1. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 

A. Budgetary Control 

Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 
As of June 30, 2011 

The Municipality's annual budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting, which is not in 
accordance with USGAAP, and represents departmental appropriations recommended by the Mayor and 
approved by the Municipal Legislature prior to the beginning of the fiscal year. Amendments to the budget 
require the approval of the Municipal Legislature. Transfers of certain appropriations within the budget, 
known as Mayor's Executive Orders, do not require the approval of the Municipal Legislature. The 
Municipality prepares its annual budget including the operations of the general fund. 

For budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounting is used. The encumbrances (i.e., purchase orders, 
contracts) are considered expenditures when incurred. For USGAAP reporting purposes, encumbrances 
outstanding at year-end are disclosed in the notes of the financial statements as other significant 
commitments and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be honored 
during the subsequent year. In addition, under the budgetary basis of accounting, revenues are recorded 
when cash is received. 

The unencumbered balance of any appropriation at the end of the fiscal year will lapse at the end of such 
fiscal year. Other appropriations, mainly capital project appropriations, are continuing accounts for which 
the Municipal Legislature has authorized that an unspent balance from the prior year be carried forward 
and made available for current spending. 

The annual budget as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund is the budget 
resolutions at June 30, 2011 representing the original budget. There was one supplemental appropriation 
for the year ended June 30, 2011 . 

DDDDDD 
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SPECIAL REVEtlJE FUNDs 

FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS 
As of June 30, 2011 

Special Revenue Funds are established to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
restricted or committed to expenditure for specific purposes other than debt services and capital projects. 

Department of Justice Funds - These funds account for and report federal financial resources restricted to 
expenditures for various homeland security and criminal justice programs. 

Department of Labor Funds - These funds account for and report federal financial resources restricted to 
expenditures related with the Workforce Investment Act (WIA). 

Health & Human Services Funds - These funds account for and report federal financial resources restricted to 
expenditures for various health services programs, Community Services Block Grants, Ryan White Act and Head 
Start programs. 

Housing and Urban Development Funds - These funds account for and report federal financial resources restricted 
to expenditures for various housing and urban development, rehabilitation and assistance programs. 

Independent Capital Fund - This fund account for and report federal financial resources restricted to expenditures 
for a revolving loan program to small private business for the development of economic and commercial activity 
within the limits of San Juan. 

Miscellaneous Special Revenue Funds - These funds account for and report miscellaneous financial resources 
restricted or committed to expenditures by the Municipality and subsidized in part by Local, State and Federal 
resources as well as miscellaneous sources. 

Comunidad de Retiro - This fund accounts for and reports the financial position and operation of Comunidad de 
Retiro. The Comunidad de Retiro Fund is included as part of other governmental funds and accounts for the financial 
position and operation of Comunidad de Retiro (the "Project"). The Municipality formed the Project for the purpose of 
operating a 356-unit housing project for the elderly and/or handicapped. The Project is operated under Section 231 
of the National Housing Act, as amended, and regulated by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
as to rent charges and operating methods. Legal title of the Project is held by the Municipality. Separate financial 
statements of this individual fund can be obtained from the Project's administrative office: 

Condominio Centro de Altamira 
Paseo 501 Street, Suite 210 
Urbanizaci6n Altamira 
San Juan, Puerto Rico 00920 

CAPITAL PROJECT fUNDS 

Capital Projects Funds are established to account for and report financial resources that are restricted or committed 
to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and other capital 
assets. 

Joint Resolution Funds - These funds account for and report resources received by the Government of Puerto 
Rico restricted for the construction of capital assets and infrastructure. 
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Citizen Participation Funds - These funds account for and report resources received by the CRIM restricted to 
expenditures for citizen's organizations for the construction or improvements of capital assets on their communities. 

Various Bond Issue Funds - These funds account for and report resources from various bond issues before 2008 
committed to expenditures for the construction or acquisition of major capital facilities and other capital assets. 

2009 Bond Issue Funds - These funds account for and report resources from 2009 bond issues committed to 
expenditures for the construction or acquisition of major capital facilities and other capital assets. 

201 O Bond Issue Funds - These funds account for and report resources from 2010 bond issues committed to 
expenditures for the construction or acquisition of major capital facilities and other capital assets. 

2011 Bond Issue Funds - These funds account for and report resources from 2011 bond issues committed to 
expenditures for the construction or acquisition of major capital facilities and other capital assets. 

Loan Guarantee Fund - This fund accounts for and report resources from the loan agreement with the US 
Department of Housing and Urban Development under a variable rate note guaranteed pursuant to Section 108 of 
the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, restricted to expenditures for the construction 
or acquisition of major capital facilities and other capital assets. 
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ASSETS 
Cash in commercial banks 
Cash with fiscal agent 
Accounts receivable: 

Intergovernmental 
Other 

Loans receivable, net 
Due from other funds 
Inventories 
Real estate held br sale 
Restriced cash in com mercial banks 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Intergovernmental payables 
Due to other funds 
Deferred revenues 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable 
Restriced 
Committed 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances 
Total liabilities and fund balances 

Nonmljor 
Spec:WRwue 

Funds 

$ 33,438,872 
1,709,000 

20,754,179 
649,683 

10,886,938 

24,394 
175,201 

2,496,757 
$ 70.135.024 

$ 8,247,818 
533,220 

41 ,646,731 
5, 118,730 

55,546,499 

10,911 ,332 
12, 116,340 

169,315 
(8,608,462} 
14,588,525 

$ 70,135,024 
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$ 10,503,045 $ 43,941,917 
88,496,895 90,205,895 

20,754,179 
151 649,834 

10,886,938 
791 ,778 791 ,778 

24,394 
175,201 

18,600 2,515,357 
$ 99.8101469 i 169.945.493 

$ 15,231 ,595 $ 23,479,413 
96,395 629,615 

14,684,567 56,331 ,298 
5, 118,730 

30,012,557 85,559,056 

10,911 ,332 
6,498,784 18,615,124 

63,977,941 64, 147,256 
(6781813} (9,2871275} 

69,797,912 84,386,437 
$ 99,810,469 $ 169,945,493 



MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO COMBINING BALANCE SHEEl 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND~ 
As of June 30, 201 

lioU.ing & ......... -
Mlecellaneou'i ~....,...... Total 

Department Department Human ~- Urban Independent Special Nonmajor 
ofJuetloe of Labor Servloe Development Capltal Re"91lue • Comunldad SpeclalRevenue ·Ir 

Fu no Fund• ' .. ~· Funds ,.,,. __ Funde Fund • Fund• delRetlro Funds ---· ---~-<;•• !.... !~ 

ASSETS 
Cash in commercial banks $ 132,451 $ 3,075,750 $ 3,507,206 $ 10,672,954 $ 10,156,442 $ 5,882,020 $ 12,049 $ 33,438,872 
Cash with fiscal agent - - 1,709,000 1,709,000 
kcounts receivable: 

lntergo-.emmental 372,420 2,519,496 9,478,910 5,381 ,647 3,001 ,706 20,754,179 
Other 3,700 6,116 123,945 276,058 127,741 24,821 87,302 649,683 

Loans receivable, net - 10,886,938 10,886,938 
Due from other funds 
ln~ntories 24,394 - 24,394 
Real estate held for sale - 175,201 175,201 
Restricted cash in commercial banks - 2,496,757 2,496,757 

Total assets $ 508,571 $ 5,601,362 $13,134,455 $ 16,330,659 $ 21,346,322 $ 10,617,547 $ 2,596,108 $ 70,135,024 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

Liabilities: 
kcounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 167,700 $ 969,595 $ 2,718,913 $ 1,323,423 $ 54,489 $ 2,560,924 $ 452,774 $ 8,247,818 
lntergo-.emmental payables 65,855 336,175 72,528 58,662 533,220 
Due to other funds 91,403 4,563,757 12,779,064 12,924,108 27,641 11,260,758 - 41,646,731 
Matured bonds and interest payable 
Deferred re-.enues 249,468 2,155 994 ,321 2,027,649 1,843,084 2,053 5,118,730 

Total liabilities 508,571 5,601 ,362 16,828,473 16,347,708 82,130 15,723,428 454,827 55,546,499 

Fund balances (deficit): 
Nonspendable 24 ,394 10,886,938 - - 10,911 ,332 
Restricted 7,263,328 2,711 ,731 2,141,281 12, 116,340 
Committed 169,315 169,315 
Unassigned (3,718,412) (17,049) 3,11 3,926 (7 ,986,927) (8,608,462) 

Total fund balances (deficit) (3,694,018) (17,049) 21,264,192 (5,105,881) 2,141,28 1 14,588,525 

Total liabilities fund balances (deficit) $ 508,571 $ 5,60 1,362 $ 13,134,455 $ 16,330,659 $ 21 ,346,322 $ 10,617,547 $ 2,596,108 $ 70,135,024 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 
As of June 30, 2011 

Total 
Joint Cltmn ~ou• 200t •'' 2010 '· 2011 Lou Non major ... 

R ... lutlon Pertlo.,.l on BondlMUe Bond!Mu• Bond ... ue BondlMUe . GuarantM Cepllel Project 
Puhde Fund• Fund• Funde IL Fun de Fun de t Fund ' Fund• 

-. ~.=----,,.--_._ ............ .,.,... ...... ...,..,. 

ASSETS 
Cash in commercial banks $ 8,581,497 $ $ $ $ $ $ 1,921,548 $ 10,503,045 
Cash with fiscal agent 37,009,734 6,895,316 19,815,096 24,776,749 - 88,496,895 
Pccounts receivable: 

lntergo1.ernmental 
Other - 151 151 

Loans receivable, net 
Due from other funds 502,412 - 289,366 791,778 
lnwntories 
Real estate held for sale 
Resbicted cash in commercial banks 18,600 18,600 

Total assets $ 8,600,097 $ 502,412 $ 37,009,885 $ 6,895,316 $ 19,815,096 $ 24,776,749 $ 2,210,914 $ 99,810,469 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 
Liabilities: 
Pccounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 117,959 $ 753,144 $ 13,191 ,529 $ 319,200 $ 210,556 $ (36,829) $ 676,036 $ 15,231 ,595 
lntergowrnmental payables 96,395 - 96,395 
Due to other funds 1,983,354 3,889,025 7,004,197 1,357,619 450,372 14,684,567 
Deferred rewnues 

Total liabilities 2,101,313 753,144 17,176,949 7,323,397 1,568, 175 413,543 676,036 30,012,557 

Fund balances (deficit): 
Non spendable 
Restricted 6,498,784 6,498,784 
Committed 19,832,936 18,246,921 24,363,206 1,534,878 63,977,941 
Unassigned (250,732) (428,081) (678,813) 

Total fund balances (deficit) 6,498,784 (250,732) 19,832,936 (428,081) 18,246,921 24,363,206 1,534,878 69,797,912 
Total liabilities fund balances (deficit) $ 8,600,097 $ 502,412 $ 37,009,885 $ 6,895,316 $ 19,815,096 $ 24,776,749 $ 2,210,914 $ 99,810,469 
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

~ 

CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

! 

Nonnlljor Nonlllljor 
Specill Capbl 
RMnue Project 
Funds Funds 

REVENUES 
Charges br Services $ 2,135,798 $ $ 2, 135,798 
lnerest 664,892 664,892 
lnergovernmental 

Federal 142,588,992 142,588,992 
Local 1,898 226,711 228,609 

Other 3,404,137 62,704 3,466,841 
Total revenues 148,795,717 289,415 149,085, 132 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General Government 13,046,766 88,251 13,135,017 
Public Sai:lty 1,362,658 1,362,658 
Public works 1,107,366 163,002 1,270,368 
Culture and recreation 943,956 266,234 1,210, 190 
Health and welfare 53,692,048 387,511 54,079,559 
Urban development 47,111,979 1, 116 47,113,095 
Economic development 10,399,742 463,773 10,863,515 
Education 8,413,936 483,932 8,897,868 

Capital ou1!ays 8,303,142 29,985,277 38,288,419 
Debt Service 

Principal 3,670,736 3,670,736 
Interest 3, 101,099 3,101,099 

Total expendi1ures 151,153,428 31 ,839,096 182,992,524 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER(UNDER)EXPENDITURES (2,357,711) (31 ,549,681) (33,907,392) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Proceeds from bonds issued 26,738,060 26,738,060 

Total other financing sources (uses) 26,738,060 26,738,060 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (2,357,711) (4,811,621) (7,169,332) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS 
RESTATED 16,946,236 74,609,533 91,555,769 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 14,588,525 $ 69,797,912 $ 84,386,437 
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_..._... 
of.I ....... 

P'und• 

REVENUES 

Charges br Services $ 
Interest 12 

Intergovernmental 

Federal 885,244 

Local 

otier 11 

Total revenues 885,267 
EXPENDITURES 

Current 

General Government 83,637 

Pu bHc Safety 170,613 

Public works 

Cul\Jr e and recreation 
Healti and welfare 152,310 
Urban development 

Econorlic development 

Educalon 

Capital oulays 4 78,707 

Debt Service 

Principal 

Interest 

Total expendi1Ures 885,267 
EXCESS (DEFI CIENCY) OF REVENUES 

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 

Proceeds tom bonds Issued 

Total olher l nandng sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (DEF1c 1n 

FUND BALANCES (OEFICln, BEGINNING OF 
YEAR, AS RESTATED 

FUND BALANCES (OEFICln, ENO OF YEAR $ 

"' 

~nt 
' 

Hu_.. j· ..,,,._ 
of Lllbor " .. • P'unn ~ Fundtl ..... .._.,..,.. . 

$ $ $ 

9,218,439 53,646,527 

9,218,439 53,646,527 

18,721 9,654,043 

467,588 

46,753,246 

8 ,731 ,805 
75,516 

325 857,740 

9 ,218,439 57,340,545 

p ,694,018! 

(3,694,018) 

$ $ (3,694,018) $ 
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HOualng&- .. 
u111 .. 

Dwelo..-t 
Funn 

239 

57,408,372 

851 ,367 

58.259,978 

757,707 

236,078 

928,677 

2,713,197 

45,259,202 
1,011 ,152 

1,277,249 

3,330,000 
2,763,765 

58,277,027 

p7,049! 

(17,049) 

(17,049) 

' J 

ci.; 
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) • 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUES FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

--Mliiiiilliiieoue ·iL I) - 'tiil 
lndeflellclent ...... NonlNfor 

Cepllal 
"a lllevenue Comunldlld 8peolel liltovenue 

.~ H 
,..I~ P'und P ..W...J Funde - del"9Clro Fund9 

$ $ $ 2,135,798 $ 2,135,798 
664,641 664,892 

21,430,410 142,588,992 
1,898 1,898 

875,000 1,677,759 3,404,137 

1,541 ,539 23,108,169 2,135,798 148,795,717 

2,532,658 13,046,766 
488,379 1,362,658 

1,107,366 1,107,366 
15,279 943,956 

4,073,295 53,692,048 
29,737 1,823,040 47,111 ,979 

314 ,750 342,035 10,399,74 2 
8,338,420 8,413,936 

5,647,148 41,973 8,303,142 

340,736 3,670,736 

337,334 3,101,099 

314,750 22,574,317 2,543,083 151,153,428 

1,226,789 533.852 !407.285! !2,357,711! 

1,226,789 533,852 (407,285) (2,357,711 ) 

20,037,403 (5,639,733) 2,548,566 16,946,236 

$ 21264192 $ (5,105,881) _$ __ ~14_1~28 1 $ 14,588,525 



COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) · 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201 1 

Totet 
Joint Clti.n V.rloul l 2009 2010 2011 Loin Nonl'llljor 

Bond ...... " Bond ... u. ' Bondlnu1 BondfHUI CeplUI Project Reeolutlon Plrtlclpmtlon 1.-. Guermnt• 
Fund Fund Funcla ... Fund• ·-· Fundt 

'-'"• 
Fundt I,..._ Fund Fundt 

REVENUES 

Charges t>r Services $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
lnerest 

lne rgovernmental 

Federal 

Local 226.711 226,711 
Olher 62,704 62,704 

Total revenues 226,711 62.704 289,4 15 
EXPENDITURES 

Current 

General Government 88,251 88.251 
Public Safety 

Public works 163,002 163,002 
Cul\Jre and recreation 41,878 29,984 8,575 185,797 266.234 
Healt1 and welfare 10.720 282,919 93,872 387,511 
Urban development 1.116 1.116 
EconolT'ic development 372,171 22.221 27.200 42,181 463,773 
Educalon 150.464 333,468 483.932 

Capital oulays 2,357,982 96,959 6,259,510 7,291,484 11 ,119.958 2.058.625 800.759 29.985,277 
Debt Service 

Principal 

In ere st 

Total expenditures 2,410,580 96,959 6,812,129 7,939,783 11.404.032 2,374,854 800,759 31,839,096 
EXCESS (DEFICI ENCY) OF.REVENUES 

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (2, 183,869) (96.959) (6.749,425) (7,939,783) p 1,404 ,032) (2,374,854) (800,759) (31.549,681) 

OTHER FINN-ICING SOURCES (USES): 

Proceeds tom bonds issued 26,738,060 26,738,060 
Total other tnancing sources (uses) 26,738.060 26.738.060 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) (2, 183.869) (96,959) (6. 749.425) (7.939,783) ( 11.404 ,032) 24,363,206 (800,759) (4,811,621) 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 8,682,653 (153,773) 26.582,361 7,511 ,702 29,650.953 2,335,637 74,609,533 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR $ 6,498,784 $ (250,732) $ 19,832,936 $ ~'-0811 $ 18,246,921 $ 24.363,206 $ 1,534,878 $ 69,797,91 2 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 

PART II 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
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E duardo Gonzalez Green, CPA, CFE 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Municipal Legislature 
Municipality of San Juan 
San Juan, Puerto Rico 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of San Juan, Puerto Rico (the "Municipality"), 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements 
and have issued our report thereon dated March 9, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Municipality's internal control over financial reporting as a 
basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipality's internal control over 
financial reporting . Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipality's internal 
control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will 
not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting 
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs that we consider to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We 
considered the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be 
significant deficiencies items 11-01to11-06. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Municipality of San Juan's financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts 
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statements amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported on under Government Auditing 
Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 11-07 
to 11-08. 

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the Municipality in a separate letter dated March 
9, 2012. 

The Municipality's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the Municipality's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion 
on it. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Municipal Legislature, management, federal awarding 
agencies, state funding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not to be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

March 9, 2012 

Stamp number 2635066 
has been affixed to the 
original report 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A 
DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A·133 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A 
DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRC ULAR A-133 

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Municipal Legislature 
Municipality of San Juan 
San Juan, Puerto Rico 

Compl iance 

We have audtted the Municipality of San Juan's, Capital of Puerto Rico (the "Municipality") compliance with the types 
of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget ("OMB") Circular A-133 
Compliance Supplement that could have direct and material effect on each of the Municipality's major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2011 . The Municipality's major federal programs are identified in the summary 
of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the 
requirements of laws, regulations. contracts, and grants, applicable to each of its major federal programs is the 
responsibility of the Municipality's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Municipality's 
compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non­
Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence about the Municipality's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Municipality's compliance with those 
requirements. 

In our opinion the Municipality of San Juan complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2011 . However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance with 
those requirements, which are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 11-07 and 11-08. 
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Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the Municipality is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with requirements or laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning 
and performing our audit, we considered the Municipality's internal control over compliance with requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine the auditing procedures for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Municipality's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A 
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified certain 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be significant deficiencies as described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 11-07 and 11-08. A significant deficiency in 
infernal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness 
in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

The Municipality's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the Municipality's responses and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on the responses. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Municipal Legislature, management, federal awarding 
agencies, state funding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. + I IJ F 
~ I ; _ ;__ r~ .1r 

March 27, 2012 ~ ~1 <iL--e ~-

Stamp number 2635067 
has been affixed to the 
original report 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

PART IV - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

1. The independent auditors' report on the basic financial statements expressed an unqualified opinion. 

2. Significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting were identified. 

3. Instances of noncompliance considered material to the financial statements were disclosed by the aud it. 

4. Significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on major federal award programs were identified. 

5. The independent auditors' report on compliance with requirements applicable to major federal award 
programs expressed an unqualified opinion. 

6. The audit disclosed findings required to be reported by OMB Circular A-133. 

7. The Municipality's major programs were: 

Name of Federal Program 

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
Lower Income Housing Assistance Program -
Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation 

Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation Single Room Occupancy 
Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS 
HOME Investment Partnership Program 
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement 
Community Development Block Grants ARRA 
HIV Emergency Relief Project Grants 
Minority AIDS Initiative 
Workforce Investment Act ("WIA ") 
Workforce Investment Act ("WIA ") ARRA 
Head Start 
Head Start ARRA 
Early Head Start Expansion ARRA 
Community Service Block Grants 
Community Service Block Grant ARRA 
Federal Transit- Capital Investment Grants 
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program) 

CFDA 
Number 

14.871 

14.856 
14.249 
14.241 
14.239 
14.218 
14.253 
93.914 
93.914 

17.258, 17.259, 17.260 
17.258, 17.259, 17.260 

93.600 
93.708 
93.709 
93.569 
93.710 
20.500 
20.507 

8. A threshold of $3,000,000 was used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as those terms 
are defined in OMB Circular A-133. 

9. The Municipality did not qualify as a low-risk auditee as that term is defined in OMB Circular A-133. 
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MUNICIPALITY OFSAN JUAN 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Reference 
Number 

Accounting and Finance Deparbnent 

Findings 

Questioned Costs 
for the Year 

Ended June 30, 
2011 

11-01 Deficit in the Municipality's general fund at June 30, 2011 . $ 
11-02 The accounting records are not maintained up to date. 
11-03 The Municipality is not canceling outstanding checks, which 

have been outstanding for a period of six months. 
11-04 Internal control over property management need to be 

strenghtened. 

11-05 The Municipality has deficiencies in the execution of property 
management procedures. 

Human Resources Department 
11-06 The Municipality does not have an effective system to ensure 

the completeness and accuracy of the employee files. 

Workforce Investment Act/W>rkforce Investment Act· ARRA 
11-07 Financial report does not reconcile with Oracle 

Federal Transit Administration Cluster 

11-08 Federal Financial Report has not been submitted 
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FINDINGS ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MATIERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDfflNG STANDARDS 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 
FINDINGS ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Finding Number 11·01 

Department 

Accounting and Finance 

Category 

Internal Control 

· Condition 

The Municipality closed its fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 with a fund balance deficiency in the general fund of 
approximately $16.8 million. In 2011, the Municipality reduced the deficit by $662,000 and established a long-temi 
financial plan to amortize the deficit in a period no longer than 40 years. 

In accordance with the "Reglamento para la Administraci6n de Municipios" Chapter IV, Section 19, the Finance 
Director has the responsibility of overseeing financial operations to prevent deficits in any municipal fund. 

The continued occurrence of this situation may result in possible significant fund limitations and eventual reduction or 
elimination of municipal services since future revenues will need to be used to pay for accumulated liabilities. 

The above situation is primarily due to the fact that, in prior years, the Municipality was appropriating expenditures 
assuming revenues using the estimated tax collection projection provided by the Municipal Revenue Collection 
Center (the "Center"). Therefore, the Municipality entered into purchases and contracts for a total that exceeds the 
actual revenues earned and collected in property taxes. The budgeting system did not reflect actual revenues and 
therefore could not prevent the obligation of expenditures for which current resources were not available. 

Recommendation 

The Municipality should continue its efforts by revising and amending the budget as current infomiation related to 
collections of budgeted revenues becomes available in order to prevent incurring obligations in excess of available 
resources. 

Views of Responsible Officials 

Management agrees. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 
FINDINGS ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MATIERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS- CONTINUED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Finding Number 11-02 

Department 

Accounting and Finance 

Category 

Internal Control 

Condition 

During the audit process, we noted that the accounting records were not maintained on a timely basis; for example 
the subsidiary reconciliations of accounts receivable, payable and payroll analysis were not prepared on a monthly 
basis. 

According to OMB Circular A-110, Subpart C, Section 21-Standards for Financial Management System, recipients 
financial management systems shall provide for: (1) Accurate, current and complete disclosure of the financial results 
of each federally-sponsored project or program in accordance with the reporting requirements; (2) records that 
identify adequately the source and application of funds for federally sponsored activities. These records shall contain 
information pertaining to Federal awards, authorizations, obligations, available balances, assets, outlays, income and 
interest. 

Managerial decisions may be executed using unreliable assumptions on financial information. 

This is caused by the lack of adequate procedures and infrastructure, including professionals with the adequate 
authority and responsibility for the supervision and analysis of the general accounting and records. 

Recommendation 

Management should maintain the accounting records up-dated and perform comparing, reviewing and monitoring 
procedures in order to have reliable financial information that can be used in the managerial decision process. Also, 
an adequate identification and proper adjustment of reconciling items during the accounts receivable and payable 
analysis is necessary to maintain and disclose accurate and current financial information. 

Views of Responsible Officials 

Management agrees. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 
FINDINGS ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MATIERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS- CONTINUED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Finding Number 11-03 

Department 

Accounting and Finance 

Category 

Internal Control 

Condition 

The Municipality does not cancel checks which have been outstanding for a period in excess of six months. 

Chapter IV, Section 13, of the "Reglamento para la Administraci6n de Municipios· establishes that checks 
outstanding for more than one year should be canceled. The Municipality's policy for canceling checks has an 
expiration period of six months. 

This situation allows for a possible understatement of cash and an overstatement of expenditures and, in the case of 
Federal Funds, could result in questioned and disallowed costs. 

This is caused by the lack of regular monthly review of bank reconciliations and inadequate follow-up on reconciling 
items. 

Recommendation 

The Municipality should evaluate the outstanding checks lists on a monthly basis, and investigate checks that have 
not cleared the bank for an unreasonable period of time (i.e. three to six months), contact the payee and determine 
the underlying reasons as to why these have not been presented to the bank for payment. 

Views of Responsible Officials 

Management agrees. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 
FINDINGS ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MATIERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS- CONTINUED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Finding Number 11 ·04 

Department 

Property Management 

Category 

Internal Control 

Condition 

The Municipality has not performed a physical inventory of equipment and vehicles. According to the existing 
records, the cost of the equipment and vehicles owned by the Municipality is approximately $84.6 millions as of June 
30, 2011. In addition, property records are not segregated by fund. 

Article 8.010 (c) of the Municipalities' Act states that the accounting system should provide: (a) complete information 
of the Municipality's operations; (b) proper and necessary financial information for the efficient administration of the 
Municipality; (c) effective controls and the accountability for all the funds, property and other municipal assets; and 
(d) necessary information for the preparation of accurate financial reports that could be used in the preparation of the 
municipal budget. 

Chapter VII, Section 23 of the "Reglamento para la Administraci6n de Municipios· also establishes that property 
physical inventories should be performed on an annual basis, as part of the overall property management control of 
the Municipality. Updated inventory lists should be compared and agreed with general ledger, and differences, if any, 
should be investigated and reconciled . 

There is a significant risk of unauthorized use or disposition of property because there are no internal controls to 
ensure accountability of assets by department/division. This inadequate property control may expose the 
Municipality to cost disallowances by the federal government for lost or stolen property acquired with federal funds. 

The Property Division has not enforced the requirement that departments perform property inventories to ensure the 
proper accountability of assets. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 
FINDINGS ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MATIERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS- CONTINUED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Recommendation 

A physical inventory of equipment and vehicles owned by the Municipality should be performed as soon as possible 
for all departments and all differences should be investigated, reconciled and adjusted on the property and 
equipment subsidiary ledgers. In connection with this inventory, tags should be placed on each asset with numbers 
that are recorded detail property records. This will help improve the tracking of assets for disposal and impairment 
purposes. Federal regulations regarding disposition of property acquired with federal funds should be followed for 
property items which are not located as a result of such inventory. 

Views of Responsible Officials 

Management agrees. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 
FINDINGS ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MATIERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS - CONTINUED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Finding Number 11-05 

Department 

Property Management 

Category 

Internal Control 

Condition 

The Municipality has deficiencies in the execution of property management procedures. During our test of real 
property and equipment management, we noted that the Municipality's equipment acquired during the year is not 
properly and timely labeled and identified. 

Chapter VII, Section 14 of the "Reglamento para la Administraci6n de Municipios" establishes that the Municipality 
will assign a unit number for all municipal property acquired and owned by the Municipality. Before any payment 
made for property acquired by purchase, the Property Manager shall assign the number of unit of the property in the 
respective purchasing document 

Chapter VII, Section 15 of the "Reglamento para la Administraci6n de Municipios" also establishes that the Property 
Manager shall have full control of property records of the Municipality and responds to the Finance Director. Also, 
after the unit number is assigned the Property Manager shall prepare a record of the property which must contain the 
following information: unit number, name, description of the property, cost or estimated value at the date of the 
acquisition, name and address of the supplier, brand name, serial number and location of the property. 

There is a significant risk of unauthorized appropriation, use or disposition of equipment due to the lack of internal 
controls and adequate property and equipment records to ensure accountability of assets by department/division. 

The Municipality does not maintain accurate records for acquisitions, transfers, returns and disposal of the assets 
acquired. 

Recommendation 

The Municipality's management should endure that proper procedures are in place to ensure that property purchased 
is properly and timely identified and conduct periodic inventories and follow up any inventory discrepancies. In 
addition, the Municipality's management should review all disposals of property to ensure appropriate valuation. 
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CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 
FINDINGS ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MA TIERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS-CONTINUED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Views of Responsible Officials 

Management agrees 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 
FINDINGS ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MATIERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS - CONTINUED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Finding Number 11-06 

Department 

Human Resources Department 

Category 

Internal Control 

Condition 

Randomly we selected two pay periods in 2011 . A sample of 125 employees was selected to vouch employees' 
payment to ascertain accuracy of the payment amount and process. Of 125 employee files tested for 7 files (6%) we 
were not supported by complete time and attendance records. 

The payroll charge has to be supported by documentation prescribed in OMB Circular A-87, attachment B, 
Paragraph 11 .h for state and local governments and Indian tribal governments. The payroll charge has to be 
supported by personnel activities as time and attendance records and salary distribution reports. 

Incomplete employee files could result in having inadequate records to support payroll and personnel transactions. 

The above situation was due to a restructuring process established by the Human Resources Department and 
procedures are not fully implemented. 

Recommendation 

The Human Resources and Labor Relations Department should maintain audit trail sufficient to support that 
employee payroll payment has been properly completed. 

Views of responsible personnel 

Management agrees 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 
FINDINGS ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND 
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Finding Number 11·07 

Federal program 

Workforce Investment Act (WIA)- CFDA # 17.258, # 17.259, # 17.260 
Workforce Investment Act (WIA)- ARRA - CFDA # 17.258, # 17.259, # 17.260 

Category 

Internal Control/ Compliance 

Compliance requirements 

Reporting 

Condition 

The cumulative financial reports submitted to the Puerto Rico Human Resources and Occupational Development 
Council ("PRHRODC") did not agree with the accounting records. 

Based on provisions of the contract agreement between the PRHRODC and the Municipality, the WIA Program of the 
Municipality is required to submit to the PRHRODC a monthly cumulative expenditures report and is also required to 
maintain adequate fund accounting. In addition, OMB Circular A-102, accurate, current, and complete disclosure of 
the financial results of financially assisted activities must be made in accordance with the financial reporting 
requirements of the grant or sub grant. 

Failure to report accurate information prevents the granting agency from monitoring the performance of the program's 
financial activities, assessing the achievements of the program and evaluating the expected grant award for the 
following years. At the same time, the Municipality could be exposed to significant adjustments to the grant already 
awarded. 

As represented by the Municipality's management, this report was prepared with the financial data recorded in the 
books at the program level due to unreconciled differences between the numbers kept at the program level and the 
numbers in the Municipality's general ledger. Differences are due to certain expenditures that were recorded by the 
program but not yet recorded by the Municipality. 

Questioned Costs 

None 
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Recommendation 

We recommend that adequate accounting records be developed to provide current, complete and accurate data. It 
must include a general ledger and other records such as subsidiary ledgers. 

In addition, the Municipality should perform timely reconciliation and cut-off procedures between numbers kept at 
federal programs and numbers recorded in the Municipality's general ledger in order to provide reasonable 
assurance that financial reports submitted to the federal awarding agency include all activities of the reporting period, 
are supported by underlying accounting or performance records, and are fairly presented in accordance with program 
requirements. 

Views of Responsible Officials 

Management agrees. 
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Finding Number 11-08 

Federal program 

Federal Transit- Capital Investment Grants- CFDA #20.500 
Federal Transit- Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program - CFDA #20.507 

Category 

Compliance 

Compliance requirements 

Financial reporting 

Condition 

The Municipality could not provide the Federal Financial Report submitted for the periods of October 1, 2010 to 
December 31, 2010 for project PR-90-X150-00 and period of October 1, 2010 to December 31, 2010 for project PR-
90-X-252-00. 

Federal regulations require each recipient which directly receives financial assistance to submit form SF-425. It shall 
be submitted on a quarterly basis. 

Failure to submit an FFR (Federal Financial Report) may delay receiving grant funds and may result in a 
determination of lack of capacity for future funding. 

These reports are not properly filed in the Municipality. 

Questioned Costs 

None. 

Recommendation 

The Federal Financial Report must be prepared and filed as required by the Federal Transit Administration (FTA). 
Client should maintain a hard copy or an electronic copy submitted. 

Views of Responsible Officials 

Management agrees. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Pass-
CFDA through Expenditures 

Federal Gran tor/Pass· Through GrantorfProgram or Cluster Title Number Number 2011 

Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 $ 22,211, 177 
CDBG Cluster 
Corrmunity Development Block Granls/Enffement Grants 14.218 10,663,942 
Community Development Block Grant ARRA Enlillement Grant 
(Recovery Funded GranQ 14.253 ARRA 1, 133,975 

11,797,917 
HOME lnveslment Partnership Programs 14.239 5,954,621 
HOPWA Cluster 
Housing Opportmities hr Persons with AIDS 14.241 5,474,330 
Pass-through from Commonwealth of Puerto Rico/Department of Health 

HOPWA - Project Sponsor 14.241 2,523,335 

7,997,665 
Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation Cluster 
Section 8 Moderae Rehabi it=ltion Single Room Occupancy 14.249 788,965 
Lower Income Housing Assislant Program-Section 8 Moderae Rehabilit=lion 14.856 3,371,977 

4,160,942 
Emergency ShelEr Grants Program 14.231 475,343 
Supportive Housing Program 14.235 1,235,804 
Community Development Block Granls/Section 108 Loan Guaranees 14.248 800,759 
ShelEr Plus Care 14.238 509,452 
Homeless Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program 14.257 ARRA 2,908,946 
Pass-through from Commonwealth of Puerto Rico/OCAM 

ARRA - Neighborhood St:lbiization Program (NSP) 14.256 * 1,025,340 

59,077,966 

.., 
Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) 

Head Start Cluster 
Head St:irt 93.600 29,489,915 
Head St:lrt - ARRA 93.708 ARRA 1,018,327 
Early Head Slart Expansion - ARRA 93.709 ARRA 3,965,014 

34,473,256 

See notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
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Pass· 
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through GrantorfProgram or Cluster CFDA through Expenditures 
Title Number Number 2011 

Department of Health and Human Services (HHS)· continued 

HIV Emergency Relief Project Grants 93.914 11,095,480 
Consolidated Healtl Cen1ers 93.224 481,276 
ARRA-Grants 1o Healtl Cen1ers Program 93.703 ARRA 31,441 
Cancer Control 93.399 409,913 
ARRA Scholarship Disadvantaged Students 93.407 ARRA 29,679 
Scholarship br Healtl Proessions Srudents 93.925 45,837 
Special Projects of National Significance 93.928 62,330 

Pass-through from Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Families 
and Child Adninistration· 
CSBG Clus1er 
Corrm.mity Service Block Grant 93.569 4,208,049 
Comrrunity Service Block Grant - ARRA 93.710 ARRA 5,683,887 

9,891,936 
Pass-through from Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Governor's Office-
Special Program br 1he Aging-Tille 111, Part C- Nutrition Services 93.045 • 1,151,252 
Pass-through from Commonwealth of Puerto Rico-WESTAT· 
National lnstitu1e - \'\EST AT 93.990 581 ,616 
Pass-through from Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Department of Education· 
Risk Reduction 93.941 • 178,868 
Childhood lrrrrunization Grants 93.268 51,837 
Pass-through from Harvard College 
ARRA NICHD-Pediatric-HIV-AIDS 93.701 ARRA • 7,075 

58,491,796 .... 

Department of Labor (DOL) 
! 

Pass-through from Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Right to 
Employment Administration· 
WIACluster 
V\brkbrce lnveslrrent Act (l/v1A) - Adult Program 17.258 3,041,964 
V\brkbrce lnveslrrent Act (l/v1A) - Youti Activities 17.259 2,386,456 
V\brkbrce lnveslrrent Act (IMA) - Dislocated V\brkers 17.260 1,655,997 
V\brkbrce lnveslrrent Act (IMA) - Adult Program ARRA 17.258 ARRA 568,379 
V\brkbrce lnveslrrent Act (l/v1A) - You1h Activities ARRA 17.259 ARRA 1,142,644 
V\brkbrce lnveslrrent Act (IMA) - Dislocated V\brkers ARRA 17.260 ARRA 422,999 

9,218,439 

See notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS - CONTINUED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Pass-
CFDA through Expenditures 

Federal Grantor/Pass-lhrough Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number 2011 

Department of Justice (DOJ) 

Drug Free Corrrrunities Support Programs Gran?> 16.729 960,917 
Comrunily ProseaJtion Project Sale Neighborhoods 16.609 88,774 
U.S. Marshall Services- PR Fugitive Task Force 16.000 13,020 
Pass-through from Convnonwealth of Puerto Rico Department 
of Justice: 
Edward Byrne Justice Assis1ance Grant 16.738 • 87,865 
Crirre Victim Assislant 16.575 • 58,953 
ARRA Edward Byrne Merrorial Justice Assislance Grant 16.803 ARRA • 93,357 

Subblal 1,302,886 

Department of Education (ED) 

Federal PeU Grant Program (PELL) 84.063 7,417,435 
Supplerrenlary Educational Opportunily Gran?> 84.007 45,389 
Federal V\brk-Si.Jdy Program (FVVS) 84.033 60,499 

7,523,323 
TRIO Student Support Services 84.042 294,865 
Acadenic Competitiveness Grant 84.375 27,557 
National Science and Mathematicals Access lo Relain Talent Grant (SMART 84.376 64,000 

Subblal 7,909,745 

Department of Agriculture (USDA) 

Pass-through from Convnonweatth of Puerto Rico Department 
of Education-
Child and Adult Care Food Program (CACFP) 10.558 • 2,368,550 
National School Lunch Program 10.555 • 177,669 

Subblal 2,546,219 

Comoration for National and Comm.inlt~ Service 
• 

Pass-through from Conmonwealth of Puerto Rico Department 
of Health: 
Feser Grandparent Program 94.011 395,019 
Retired and Senior Voluneer Program 94.002 82,198 

477,217 

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS - CONTINUED 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Federal Grantor/Pass· Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title 

Department of Homeland Security 
Urban Area Security Initiative 

Department of Transportation 
Federal Transit Capital lnvestrent Grant 
Federal Transit Formula Grant 

CFDA 
Number 

97.067 

20.500 
20.507 

Pass-through from Commonwealth of Puerto Rico/Traffic Safety Commission : 
Drugs, Tobacro & Firearrrs 20.601 

Department of Energy 
Pass-through from Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Governor's Office 
ARRA Energy Efticiency and Conservation Block Grant 81 .128 ARRA 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

* Pass-through number is not available 

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
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Pass· 
through Expenditures 
Number 2011 

48,640 

1,014,176 
4,767,972 

5,782,148 

86,185 

5,868,333 

1,109,325 : 

$ 146,050,566 



MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN 
CAPITAL CITY OF PUERTO RICO 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

1. Basis of Accounting-The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant 
activity of the Municipality of San Juan, Capital City of Puerto Rico (the "Municipality"), and is presented in 
accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in 
the preparation of, the basic financial statements. The Municipality's government-wide financial statements are 
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, which conform to 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") as applicable to governmental 
units. The accounts of the Municipality are presented on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate 
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that 
comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures. Government resources are allocated to and 
accounted for by individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which 
spending activities are controlled. 

A reconciliation of amounts included in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards to the other governmental 
funds column in the fund financial statements follows: 

Schedule of expenditures of federal awards 

Comunidad del Retire 

Nonfederal programs included in the special re\enue funds 

Total special re\enue funds 

Capital projects funds 

Less: Loan guarantee fund 

Other governmental funds columns in the go\emmental fund 

financial statements 

$ 31 ,589,451 

(800,579) 

$ 146,050,566 
2,543,083 

3,360,358 

151 ,954,007 

30,788,872 

$ 182,7 42,879 

2. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance ("CFDA") numbers are presented for programs for which such 
numbers are available. 

3. Reporting Entity-The Municipality, for purposes of the supplementary Schedule of Expenditure of Federal 
Awards, includes all the funds of the primary government as defined by GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial 
Reporting Entity. 

4. Clusters • The Schedule of Federal Assistance indentified some programs as clusters. A cluster of programs 
means federal programs with different CFDA numbers that are closely related programs that share common 
requirements. 
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, PUERTO RICO 

SUM MARY SCHEDULE OF PRJOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 

Reference 

Number Finding Description Questioned Costs Status 

Accounting and Finance Department 

10-01 Deficit in the Municipality's general fund at June 30, 2010 
Situation still prevails. Refer to Finding 11 -01 and related 

$ Corrective Action Plan. 

10-02 The accounting records are not maintained up to date. 
Situation still prevails. Refer to Finding 11-02 and related 

. Corrective Action Plan . 

10-03 
The Municipality is not canceling checks which have been outstanding I Situation still prevails. Refer to Finding 11-03 and related 

for a period in excess of six months. . Corrective Action Plan. 

10-04 Internal controls over property management need to be strengthened. 
IS1tuatron still prevails. Refer to Finding 11-04 and related 

. Corrective Action Plan . 

10-05 
The Municipality has deficiencies in the execution of property I Situation still prevails. Refer to Finding 11-05 and related 

management procedures. Corrective Action Plan. 

All federal programs 
The Municipality does not have an effective system to ensure the 

10-06 comcleteness and accuracv of the emo lovee files. . Corrective Action Plan implemented with positive results. 

Workforce Investment Act/Workforce Investment Act/ARRA 

10-07 Financial report does not reconcile with Oracle. Situation still prevails. Refer to Finding 11-07 and related 
- Corrective Action Plan. 

Home Investment Program 

The Municipality does not have adequate internal controls over the 
10-08 valuation of subgrantee proposals and monitoring subrecipients 

activities. . Corrective Action Plan implemented with positive results . 
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Finding 
Number Category 

11-06 Internal Control 

11-07 Interna l control/ 
Compliance 

11-08 Compliance 

iJ 
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN 

Condition Found 

The Municipality does not have an 
effective system to ensure the 
completeness and accuracy of the 
employee files. 

Financial report does not reconcile 
with Oracle. 

Federal Financial Report has not 
been submitted. 

Corrective Action Plan 
Single Audit Requirements 

as of June 30, 2011 

Management Response and/or 
Corrective Action 

Management Response and/or Action 

The Human Resources Department is continuously reviewing 
a ll procedures in order to comply with the requirements for 
employee records. They have acquired an additional program 
application that is directed towards employee payroll and 
personnel transactions that will eliminate all manual filing. 
The first phase will be implemented by FY 2013. 

The files regarding this find ing are being presented for review 
and aU documents to this respect w ill be filed and available 
for FY 2012. 
We are currently working with this issue and expect that the 
reconciliation of Federal Reports and ORACLE Reports be 
completed in April 2012. 

For FY 2011-2012, the accounts of Administration and 
Program Categories for each the three WlA Programs (Adults, 
Dislocated Workers and Youths) were created in ORACLE so 
that expenses are classified accordingly as they are incurred. 
The Financial Federal reports will be submitted in 
coord.ination with the Federal Funds Office of the Finance 
Department. The Office of Management and Budget will 
prepare and submit the narrative report and will print and file 
all the reports submitted through TEAM and provide copies to 
the Federa l Funds Office. 

2 of 2 

Assigned Expected 
Res ponsi bili ty Target Date 

Human Resources JUNE 2012 
Department 

Continuous 

WIA JUNE 2012 

FTA JUNE 2012 





Finding 
Number Category 

11-01 Internal Control 

11-02 Internal Control 

11-03 Inte rnal Control 

11-04 Inte rnal Control 

11-05 lntemal Control 

ti 
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN 

Condition Found 

Deficit in the MunicipaJity's general 
fund at June 30, 2011. 

The accounting records are not 
maintained up to date. 

The Municipality is not canceling 
checks which have been 
outstanding for a period in excess 
of six months. 

Internal controls over property 
management need to be 
strengthened. 

The Municipality has deficiencies in 
the execution of property 
management procedures. 

Corrective Action Plan 
Single Audit Requirements 

as of June 30, 2011 

Management Response and/or 
Corrective Action 

Assigned 
Management Response and/or Action Responsibility 

Our long term financia l plan, will continue to enable us to: (1) Finance Department 
finish operations with excess of revenues over expenditures; 
(2) apply the excess of revenues to the accumulated deficit 
within a period of 10 years or less; (3) be in compliance with 
local law which establishes that an outstanding deficit must be 
amortized in a period no longer than 40 years. 
We are working with our IT Office in order to ensure that the Finance Depa rtment 
format of the information provided by our financial system for 
reconciJiation purposes will be modified to the needs in 
question. This wilJ a llow us to comply w ith the reconciliations 
on a timely basis. 
As part of the m onthly reconciliation process, the Municipa lity Finance Department 
identifies a ll outstanding checks over six months and adjusts 
the General Ledger to that effect. 

We have modified the instructions on our checks of aU 
checking accounts to read, " NOT V AUD AFTER 6 MONTHS 
OF DATE ISSUED" and sent notices to a ll banks w ith the 
appropriate instructions to this effect. We will continue to 
follow up on a monthly basis to ascertain that they are in 
compHance. 
We are in the process of performing a physical inventory of all Finance Department 
vehicles and equipment of the entire Municipality. Since the 
inventory is in a widely spread environment, this process wilJ 
take various months to complete. Nevertheless, we have a 
physical inventory available from each Municipal Dependency 
and are being confirmed with the current information in our 
accounting archives. 

We continue to review our accounting process in orde r to 
segregate the property subsidiary into each program fund as 
req uired. 
We have established procedures which are in effect for the Finance Department 
fiscal year 2011-2012 and we understand that we will be in 
comple te complfance in this matter during fiscal year 2012-
2013. 
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Expected 
Target Date 

Continuous 

Continuous 

Continuous 

Continuous 

JUNE 2013 
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De Francisco J. Pefia Montanez 
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